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Corporate Profile

AS Pro Kapital Grupp in brief

Established in 1984, AS Pro Kapital Grupp (hereinafter as ‘the Company’ and / or ‘Pro Kapital') is a
leading Estonian real estate company with a focus on development, management and sale of modern
large-scale retail and residential real estate in the capitals of Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania. The
Company also owns and manages three hotels in Tallinn, Riga and Bad Kreuznach, Germany.

Since its establishment in 1994, the Company has completed 20 development projects with ca
180 000 square meters of total saleable area. The Company has been one of the first players on the
Baltic markets and its projects have been milestones in the Baltic real estate market.

Pro Kapital's operating strategy is to develop prime residential and retail real estate in all three Baltic
capitals. The Company adds value through the entire life cycle of the development process, taking a
fong-term approach. Pro Kapital follows a conservative policy in financing the projects — a high
proportion of equity and low leverage compared to the industry average enables the Company to
develop the most profitable sales and decrease the effect of real estate market fluctuations

Pro Kapital is managed by an experienced team of real estate professionals with more than 15 years
of Baltic real estate development experience.

The estimated value of the investments in Pro Kapital's current real estate portfolio is approximately
180.03 million euros: 64% residential developments, 24% commercial premises and 12% hotels
(Newsec, July 2012).

Since 23 November 2012 AS Pro Kapital Grupp is listed on the secondary list of NASDAQ OMX
Tallinn Stock Exchange.

Vision

Our vision is to be leading developer of prime quality residential and retail real estate in the capital
cities of the Baltic States. Using our top expertise proven through the list of completed projects, we
strive to offer our customers the highest quality products with the unique land bank locations in
Tallinn, Riga and Vilnius and value added throughout the whole product development cycle.

Mission

Our mission is to develop, manage and sell prime residential and retail real estate in the capital cities
of the Baltic States and create the best opportunities for improving living conditions for households
and creating quality environment for successful development and growth of retail operators in the
markets.
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Statement of the Chief Executive Officer

The year 2012 has been historically important for the Company with the start of the trading of its
shares on the secondary list of Tallinn Stock exchange on 23 November. This was a result of a long
preparation work and has set the road for focusing to the launch of several large scale long-term
projects.

The general market situation in Baltic capitals continued moderate recovery throughout the year
maintaining stable upward trend that creates a solid base of request for the new products both in
residential and retail segment. In Tallinn residential real estate prices have increased significantly
from their low point in 2009, while prices in Riga and Vilnius continue to recover, though at a slower
pace. This still leaves all three markets a long way off their peaks and gives positive price growth
outlooks for the Company's residential markets.

Now AS Pro Kapital Grupp is at the start of another investment cycle. The Company makes major
focus on development of Tondi Residential Quarter, Peterburi road Shopping Centre, both in Tallinn,
and Tallinas Residential Quarter in Riga. In 2013, the Company expects to start with construction
works and first revenue from the projects to occur in 2014.

Development projects

Alongside with the preparations for the listing the Company worked in 2012 intensively on 3 new
development projects: Peterburi road shopping centre in Tallinn, first part of second stage in Tondi
Quarter in Tallinn and Tallinas Residential Complex in Riga.

For Peterburi road shopping centre and 10 new buildings in Tondi Quarter the building licences were
obtained. The Company further proceeded actively with the negotiations for the lease of the shopping
centre premises, having signed among others the anchor tenant agreement with AS Selver. As well
there were continued the works for obtaining the detail planning of Kalaranna residential development
project.

The Company carried on preparation works for obtaining building license in Tallinas Residential
Complex in Riga and continued the works for obtaining the detail planning of Kliversala residential
development project.

In Vilnius the Company continued the projecting works for the second stage of the residential quarter
“Saltiniu Namai” for obtaining the building license.

Sales and stock

Estonia

In Estonia, real estate market kept stable moderately upward trend in 2012, with both price levels and
transaction volumes increasing at a steady pace. The Company's sellable inventory base has
decreased, however, and it continued to sell its last available inventories in Tondi and limarise
quarters. Real estate and rent segments in Estonia have entered to a developmental part of the
business circle, main focus and efforts being put to new developments in Tondi Quarter and Peterburi
road shopping centre.

During the year, 10 apartments, 1 storage room, 11 parking places and one land plot were sold,
producing total revenue of 823 thousand euros.

The remained sellable stock by the end of 2012 consisted in total of 10 apartments, 8 office premises
and several parking spaces.

Hotel segment has continued its positive performance, showing gross operational profit growth of
25% due to decrease in operating costs in 2012 and plays significant part of operative cash flows.
The occupancy rate of the hotel has been 71% in 2012 (2011: 73%), which is well above market
average. Tallinn’s hotel has produced 1 448 thousand euros of revenue. As the number of tourists is
increasing, the Company plans to capitalise on the market growth in order to increase its revenue.
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Maintenance segment in Tallinn is focusing on maintenance of residential properties and has earned
1 153 thousand euros of revenue in 2012.

Latvia

In Latvia, the Company is practically out of real estate stock and is focusing on office rent segment as
well as development of Tallinas residential quarter project. Only one apartment was sold in 2012,
producing revenue of 105 thousand euros, and 3 apartments remain in stock as at 31 December

2012.

Latvian subsidiary has prolonged its lease contract on centrally based World Trade Centre office
building (Elizabetes str. 2, Riga). Rental revenue of Latvian companies amounted to 870 thousand
euros in 2012.

PK Hotel Riga is continuing its stable performance and accounts for 59% of overall Latvian segment
revenue. The occupancy rate of the hotel has increased to 78% in 2012 (2011: 71%). The average
number of rooms available has decreased from 103 rooms in 2011 to 88 rooms in 2012, which is a
positively influenced profitability measure. Revenue from Riga’s hotel amounted to 1 567 thousand
euros in 2012.

Lithuania

In Lithuania the Company is continuing with the sales of Saltiniu Namai residential complex. The
remaining sellable stock by the end of 2012 consisted in total of 46 units (apartments, cottages and
commercial premises). In addition, the Company is carrying on with planning works for the next
developmental stage of the project.

During 2012 there were 33 apartments and 19 parking spaces sold, producing revenue of 6 419
thousand euros. As at 31 December 2012, there were 46 apartments and 103 parking spaces
remaining in stock in Vilnius.

Germany

Bad Kreuznach based PK Park Hotel Kurhaus is undergoing cost restructuring in order to improve its
overall operative performance, nevertheless showing positive net operation profit by the end of the
year. The occupancy rate of the hotel has been 53% in 2012 (2011: 60%). The revenue from hotel's
activities remained stable in 2012 and constituted 3 321 thousand euros.

In 2013 our focus is on finalizing the preparations for enabling the start of new development projects
provided the positive market sentiment and raising respective required financing. We do not expect
any increase in real estate sales activities in 2013 due to continuing lack for stock for sale. Rental
activities are expected to stay on roughly similar level as compared to 2012, as new developmental
projects will start producing sales and rental revenue in year 2014 at earliest. Hotel segment will focus
on moderate increase on revenues and special focus on effectiveness and enhancing profitability.
Maintenance segment will focus on increase in service standards and effectiveness in serving its
customers.

Paolo Michelozzi
CEO
AS Pro Kapital Grupp

29 April 2013
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Management Report

Main Events and Key Figures in 2012

- Building licenses for Peterburi road shopping centre in Tallinn and Tallinn’s Tondi residential
quarter (10 buildings in total) obtained

- Projecting works for Peterburi road shopping centre, Tondi residential quarter in Tallinn and
Tallinas residential quarter in Riga continued

- Change of hotel brand name to ,PK Hotels" implemented in August 2012

- The trading of the Company'’s shares started on the secondary list of Tallinn Stock Exchange in
November 2012. The public offering of the Company’s new shares started in August 2012 had
been cancelled later due to the lack of demand at acceptable price level.

- In April 2012 new independent members of Supervisory Council were elected by the
shareholders.

- Ms Ruta Juzulenaite was appointed in April as a new CFO of the Company.

Financial Indicators, in thousands of euros

Consolidated Statement of Income

2012 2011 Change
Revenue 16 078 17 449 -7.9%
Gross profit 3 328 1042 219.4%
EBITDA * -3 794 48 449 -107.8%
Operating result * -4 613 47 858 -109.6%
Net result * -5 866 50 102 -111.7%
Net resulit for shareholders -5 869 28120 -120.9%
EBITDA margin -23.6% 277.7%
Operating margin -28.7% 274.3%
Net margin -36.5% 2871%
Net margin to shareholders -36.5% 125.7%
Earnings per share (EPS) -0.11 0.41 -126.8%

* includes profit 54 057 thousand euros from sale of Kristiine Shopping Centre in Tallinn in 2011.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 Change
Total Assets 100 262 113 472 -11.6%
Current Assets 52 096 64 688 -19.5%
Non-Current Assets 48 166 48 784 -1.3%
Total Liabilities 34135 4 414 -17.6%
Current Liabilities 16 407 17 817 -7.9%
Non-Current Liabilities 17 728 23 597 -24.9%
Equity 66 127 72 058 -8.2%
Financial Ratios
Equity ratio 66.0% 63.5%
Debt to equity ratio 35.1% 29.8%
Net debt to capital 25.4% 15.1%
Debt to EBITDA ratio -6.1 04
Current Ratio 3.2 3.6
Return to assets -5.5% 35.7%

Return to equity -8.5% 75.1%
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Formulas used for calculating financial ratios

EBITDA margin, % EBITDA / revenue*100

Operating margin, % Operating result / revenue*100

Net margin, % Net margin / revenue*100

Net margin to shareholders, % Net result for shareholders / revenue * 100

Earnings per share Net result/ average number of shares

Equity ratio, % Equity / total assets * 100

Debt to equity ratio, % Interest bearing liabilities / equity * 100

Net debt to capital, % (Interest bearing liabilities - cash and cash equivalents) /
(interest bearing liabilities - cash and cash equivalents +
equity) * 100

Debt to EBITDA ratio Interest bearing liabilities / EBITDA

Current ratio Current assets / current liabilities

Return on assets, % Net result / average total assets * 100

Return on equity, % Net result / average equity * 100

Financial performance

AS Pro Kapital Grupp ended year 2012 with gross profit of 3 328 thousand euros (2011: 1 042
thousand euros). The annual gross profit figure was strongly influenced by the margins of real estate
properties sold. The other factor contributing to significantly higher gross margin was the significance
of hotel operations business line, contributing 39.4% of total Company’s revenue in 2012 (2011:
20.0%).

The Company in 2012 focused on reviewing and maximising the effectiveness of its operating costs.
Though significant savings were achieved on administrative and general costs, due to the listing on
Tallinn Stock Exchange additional preparation costs in the amount of 1.1 million euros were incurred.
The effect of reviewed cost strategy, however, should be obvious already in 2013.

In 2012, the Company provisioned 1 409 thousand euros for legal dispute in Holland. On March 2013
the dispute has been settled off court and the Company paid 1 000 thousand euros settlement fee,
which will result in reversion of provision and other income of 409 thousand euros in the first quarter
of 2013.

On May 2011, the Company sold Kristiine shopping centre in Tallinn, earning 54 057 thousand euros
profit, recorded as other income, on the sale. In 2012, no such significant sales were recorded.

In 2012, there were no significant acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or other financial assets,
therefore, finance incomes and costs are composed mainly of interest income and expenses (in 2011
finance income included profit from the disposal of Latvian subsidiary SIA PK Investments of 2 736
thousand euros and profit from disposal of 4% of AS Tallinna Moekombinaat ownership of 635
thousand euros).

Consolidated statement of cash flows

2012 2011 Change
Cash flows from operating activities 2 405 -17 357 113.9%
Cash flows from investing activities -1 051 87 563 -101.2%
Cash flows from financing activities -9 284 -65 872 85.9%
Net change in cash and cash equivalents -7 930 4334 -283.0%

In 2012, the Company’s net cash outflow was 7 930 million euros (2011: net inflow of 4 334 million
euros). Cash flow from operations was positive of 2 405 thousand euros (2011: -17 357 thousand
euros), which resulted from swift everyday activities, as major changes in operative cash flows in
2012 were produced by sales of inventories and provisions, that by their nature are non- monetary
items.

Investing activities in 2012 have been modest, major investments of 1 025 thousand euros were
made into development of investment properties, or Peterburi road shopping centre in Tallinn.
Acquisitions of property plant and equipment made up modest amount of 73 thousand euros.
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Financing activities in 2012 were in line with the planned schedule. Main cash outflows were
repayment of loans according to the repayment scheduleé and interest payments. The Company
raised additional 566 thousand euros of bank loans and repaid 3 204 thousand euros of bank loans in
2012. In 2013, the Company plans to refinance a portion of its bank debt.

Financing sources and policies

AS Pro Kapital Grupp follows conservative financing policy, targeting for high ratio of equity in its
projects, as compared to the industry standards. Company’s goal is to use external financing in a
manner to avoid interest and loan covenant related risk during low economic periods and to have
sufficient additional external financing capacity in case attractive business opportunities occur. The
Company seeks to maintain such long term debt levels that are in reasonable proportion to growth in
operations and which preserve Company’s credit standing.

During 2012 the Company has repaid 3.2 million euros of its bank loans.

Bank loans are predominantly of middle-term duration, maturing within one to three years. Repayment
schedule is floating in dependence on sales volumes.

The Company has signed credit line agreements of 3 million euros with Swedbank and 12 million
euros with its shareholder Svaibork Invest OU, to enhance its working capital flexibility. The Company
is furthermore negotiating possible debt financing of new developmental projects.

The Company has 4 237 thousand euros of bank loans to be repaid in 2013. 7 695 thousand euros of
bank loans is repayable within 2- 5 years (2014- 2017). The latter repayment schedule is floating and
dependent on sales volumes.

As at 31 December 2012 the Company had 11 272 thousand euros convertible bonds (current
portion: 3 261 thousand euros; long term portion: 8 011 thousand euros).

Strategy and objectives for 2013

In line with the strategy set in 2011, Pro Kapital Grupp in the coming years will focus on its target
market in the capitals of Baltic States and development of its existing property portfolic. The main
areas of focus are prime residential and retail property segments in the capital cities of the Baltic
States: Tallinn, Riga and Vilnius.

Real estate markets in the Baltic States are now at increasing pace recovering from the downturn that
had hit the markets and development of existing land plots becomes crucial with the prices for real
estate rising at the increasing pace.

The Company will keep its traditionally conservative lending policy, therefore exposing its
shareholders with significantly lower market risk than other real estate companies on the market. For
development of new projects the Company will seek to attain attractive mix of financing through
combining acceptable level of borrowings from financial institutions, expanding its investor base and
attracting additional private equity.

The Company will monitor its cost structure and enhance its effectiveness.
Pro Kapital Grupp’s main objectives for 2013:

- Focus on finalizing the preparations for enabling the start of the new development projects
provided the positive market sentiment

- Maintaining conservative external debt levels

- Attraction of additional private equity and expansion of investor base

- Continuous monitoring of cost structure
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Segments

The Company’s operations are spread across four geographical segments: Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania
and Germany.

Key financial data of the segments, in thousands of euros

Revenue Operating result Net result*
2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change 2012 2011__ Change
Estonia 3561 10569 -66.3% -4375 51501 -1085% -4919 51288 -109.6%
Latvia 2650 3038 -12.8% -999 -3916 745% -1085 963 -12.7%
Lithuania 6546 3406 92.2% 786 -57  1278.9% 228 -553  141.2%
Germany** 3321 436 661.7% -25 330 -107.6% -90 330 -127.3%
Operating margin Net margin
2012 2011 2012 2011
Estonia -122.9% 487.3% -138.1% 485.3%
Latvia -37.7% -128.9% -40.9% -31.7%
Lithuania 12.0% -1.7% 3.5% -16.2%
Germany™** -0.8% 75.7% -2.7% 75.7%

* Net result includes non-controlling interests
** German hotel was acquired in November 2011 and therefore its results reported in the Company's
consolidated financial statements for 2011 are only for November 2011 — December 2011 period.

Revenue- by geographical segments, %

Revenue composition by segments, 2012

Estonia

The Company's operations in Estonia mainly consist of the development and sales of apartments in
premium residential real estate properties, development and lease of premises in retail and office
properties, and management of cash flow generating retail, office and hotel properties.

The share of the Estonian segment as a percentage of total revenues of the Company during the
reporting period amounted 22.1% compared to 60.6% of the comparable period last year, when major
part of rental and maintenance revenue was produced by Kristiine Shopping Centre that was sold in
May 2011. Operating and net results for 2011 also include profit from the sales of Kristiine Shopping
centre of 54 057 thousand euros.

Revenue from Estonia, in thousands of euros

2012 2011 Change
Real Estate 823 4019 -79.5%
Rent 79 2975 -97.3%
Hotels 1448 1375 5.3%
Maintenance 11863 2135 -46.0%

Other 58 65 -10.8%
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Revenues in real estate segment dropped by 79.5% as the Company started 2012 with significantly
lower stock available for sale base. During 2012, 10 apartments, 1 storage room, 11 parking spaces
and land plot have been sold and stock consisting of 10 apartments, 8 office premises, and 63
parking spaces was yet available for sale in Tallinn as at 31 December 2012.

Most significant drop in revenue, 97.3%, however, took place in rental segment, as the company has
sold its lion share of rental premises, Kristiine shopping centre. Currently Company's rental activities
are only occasional, renting out the stock available for sale.

Hotel business line showed stable 5% increase in revenues and outstanding increase in gross profit
margin by 25% due to reviewed and decreased operating costs.

Revenues of maintenance business line have dropped by 46%, reflecting decreased maintenance
area after the sales of Kristiine shopping centre.

New auditor was appointed to one of Estonian daughter companies, AS Tallinna Moekombinaat

(subsidiary for development of Peterburi road shopping centre), switching from local auditor to
internationally attested AS Deloitte Audit Eesti.

Latvia

The Company’'s operations in Latvia mainly consist of the development and sales of apartments in
premium residential real estate properties, development and lease of office properties, and
management of cash flow generating hotel properties.

The share of the Latvian segment as a percentage of total revenues of the Company during the
reporting period amounted 16.5% compared to 17.4% of the comparable period last year.

Revenue from Latvia, in thousands of euros

2012 2011 Change
Real Estate 105 470 -77.7%
Rent 870 729 19.3%
Hotels 1 567 1685 -7.0%
Maintenance 73 70 4.3%
Other 35 84 -58.3%

Real estate segment in Latvia is practically out of sellable stock. Therefore, only 1 apartment was sold
in 2012. As at 31 December 2012, 3 apartments remain in sellable stock.

With the low sellable stock base, the Company focuses on rental premises in Latvia. Rental revenues
have increased by 19.3% in 2012. Majority of rental revenue is earned through rent of office premises
in Elizabetes street 2 office building, to which company has lease rights. As at 31 December 2012,
5 085 m? or 93% of leasable office space, was rented out.

Revenues of hotel business line decreased by 7.0% in 2012 due to decrease of average rooms
available by 15%, from 103 rooms in 2011 to 88 rooms in 2012. This, however, had positive effect on
profitability of hotel operator. The occupancy ratio for the hotel has increased significantly, reaching
high of 78.3% for 2012.

Maintenance business line makes a minor contribution to overall segments’ revenue. The Company
provides maintenance services to its tenants and therefore maintenance revenue is correlated to the
rental area.
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Lithuania

The Company’s operations in Lithuania mainly consist of the development and sales of apartments in
premium residential real estate properties.

Revenue from Lithuania, in thousands of euros

2012 2011 Change
Real Estate 6419 3317 93.5%
Rent 72 47 53.2%
Maintenance 53 41 29.3%
Other 2 1 50.0%

The share of the Lithuanian segment as a percentage of total revenues of the Company during the
reporting period amounted 40.7% compared to 19.5% of the comparable period last year.

Real estate sales grew by 93.5% in 2012. 33 apartments and 19 parking spaces were sold during the
reporting year. There was a bulk sale of 27 apartments and 13 parking spaces in the first quarter of
2012 to related party UAB Colosseum Real Estate Vilnius. As at 31 December 2012, there were still
46 apartments and 103 parking spaces in stock in Vilnius.

The Company temporarily rents out properties available for sale. In 2012, rental revenues increased
by 63.2%, however, their share is still marginal in overall segment revenue structure.

The Company provides maintenance services to its sold and rented out apartments. In 2012, revenue
from maintenance activities has grown by 29.3% and is expected to grow stably further on.

Germany

The Company'’s operations in Germany consist of the development and management of PK Parkhotel
Kurhaus located in Bad Kreuznach, Germany, which is one of Germany’s most visited tourist areas.

Revenue from Germany, in thousands of euros
2012 2011 Change

Hotels* 3321 436 661.7%

* includes both hotel operator revenue and rental revenues from hotel building

The share of the German segment as a percentage of total revenues of the Company during the
reporting period amounted 20.7% compared to 2.5% of the comparable period last year. The
Company acquired German hotel and its operator on November 2011, therefore 2011 financial figures
are since the moment of acquisition and do not reflect the segment's position within whole financial
year. The occupancy of PK Parkhotel Kurhaus hotel has dropped somewhat during 2012 due to
undergoing restructuring.

In German segment, the Company is to focus on its cost structure and working out most effective
solutions for serving its customers.
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Business lines

In addition to geographical segments, the Company also monitors its operations by business lines.

Revenue by business lines, 2012 vs 2011 ]
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Revenue by business lines, in thousands of euros

2012 2011 Change
Real Estate 7 347 7 795 -5.7%
Rent 1021 3751 -72.8%
Hotels 6 336 3 496 81.2%
Maintenance 1279 2 246 -43.1%
Other 95 161 -41%

Revenue in real estate business line has decreased by 5.7%, which is natural development taking into
account decreasing stock for sale base. Average price per m2 sold in 2012 was 2 102 EUR/m2 (2011:
1 927 EUR/m2). In 2012, 3 317 m2 were sold (2011: 2 929 m2).

The Company is focusing on development of existing land plots, which, in its turn, will expand its
sellable asset base.

Rental revenues decreased sharply, by 72.8%, in 2012, predominantly due to sales of Kristiine
shopping centre, which has drastically decreased the Company's rental asset base. In 2012, the
Company was occasionally renting apartments from its sellable stock and had stable office rent
activities in Latvia (5 085 m2 office rental space as at 31 December 2012).

In 2012, the Company operated three hotels: PK Hotel limarine hotel in Tallinn, PK Riga Hotel and PK
Parkhotel Kurhaus in Bad Kreuznach, Germany. Revenues from hotel business line have increased
by 81.2% in 2012 due to the fact that German hotel has been operating a full financial year within Pro
Kapital Grupp (it was acquired in November 2011 and therefore 2011 revenue contains only revenue
since the moment of the hotel's acquisition). Revenue grew by 5% in Tallinn hotel and decreased by
7% in Riga hotel in 2012 as compared to 2011. Bad Kreuznach hotel's revenue numbers are not
comparable due to different revenue earning periods.

Occupancy rates, PK hotels, %

2012 2011 Change
PK limarine, Tallinn 71.1% 73.1% 2.7%
PK Riga hotel 78.3% 70.5% 11.1%
PK Parkhotel Kurhaus, Bad Kreuznach 51.8% 59.8% -13.4%

Hotels in 2012 underwent extensive restructuring. Operating costs were reviewed and restructured in
a way that most effectively serves customer needs and enhances effectiveness of business
processes. In Riga, average number of rooms available decreased from 103 in 2011 to 88 in 2012.
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The Company is now focusing on inducing effective profitability measures in Bad Kreuznach PK
Parkhotel Kurhaus.

Maintenance business line is hugely dependent on the rental spaces maintained by the Company.
The sales of Kristine shopping centre in May, 2011 have greatly decreased the space under
maintenance and therefore the revenues of maintenance segment dropped by 43.1% in 2011. Space
under maintenance as at 31 December 2012 has grown by 7.4% during the reporting year, reaching
77 426 m2 as at 31 December 2012 (31.12.2011: 72 087 m2).
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Development projects

Project name  Type

Consolidated Annual Report 2012

Location Ownership Planned Volume Classification

Peterburi road Retail
shopping
centre

Ulemiste 5 Offices

Tondi Quarter Residential

Kalaranna Residential
District

Tallinas Residential
Quarter

Kliversala Residential
District

Zvaigznes Residential
Quarter

Saltiniy Namai  Residential

Riga

Riga

Tallinn 96% GLA 55 000 m? Investment
property

Tallinn 100% GLA 22 880 m? Investment
property

Tallinn 100% NSA 83 462 m? Inventories

71 280 m? resid.
12 182 m? comm.

Tallinn 100% NSA 33013 m? Inventories

27 600 m? resid.
5 413 m2comm.

100% NSA 18 845 m? Inventories
17 650 mPresid.
1 195 m2comm

100% NSA 49 920 m? Inventories
31 650 m?resid.
7 920 m2comm
6 672 m? hotel

Riga 100% NSA 17 949 m? Inventories

11 277 méresid.
6 672 m*comm

Vilnius 100% NSA 22 086 m? Inventories

20 343 m*resid.
2 713 m2comm

NSA — Net Sellable Area, GLA — Gross Leasable Area, resid.- residential, comm.- commercial

Status of the projects:

Peterburi road shopping centre
Ulemiste 5

Tondi Quarter

Kalaranna District

Tallinas Quarter

Kliversala District
Zvaigznes Quarter

Saltiniy Namai

Building licence obtained

Detail plan adopted. Project not started

Building license for the 2nd stage obtained

Detail plan approval in process

projecting works in process in order to apply for the building
licence

Detail plan approval in process

Building licence for reconstruction of the existing building
issued

1st stage completed and on sale with an exception of two
more buildings what have applied the building licence. 2m
stage is being projected in order to apply for the building
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As at 31.12.2012
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Shares and shareholders

As at 31 December 2012 AS Pro Kapital Grupp has issued in total 53 185 422 shares with the
nominal value 0.2 euros. The registered share capital of the company is 10 637 084.40 euros.
General shareholder meeting, held on 6 February 2013, allowed the increase of share capital up to
5.32 million euros within coming three years. On 5 April 2013, extraordinary meeting of shareholders
passed the resolution to conditionally increase the Company’s share capital by 280 thousand euros,
emitting up to 1 400 000 pieces of new shares with nominal value of 0.2 euro and subscription price of
1.8 euro per share. The meeting also confirmed subscription rules to newly emitted shares.

By the shareholders decision of 13. April 2009 the share capital has been increased conditionally. By
the 13 April 2012 shareholders decision the decision of the conditional share capital increase was
amended and it was confirmed the share capital is increased conditionally by 805 151.60 euros in
connection with possible conversion of the issued convertible bonds to the shares of the Company.

Due to the start of listing on the secondary list of Tallinn Stock Exchange the Company signed in
November the market making agreement with AB Bankas Finasta.

As at 31 December 2012 there are 57 shareholders registered in the shareholders register. Many of

the shareholders registered in the shareholders register are nominee companies, which represent
many bigger and smaller non-resident investors.

Shareholders holding over 5% of the shares as at 31 December 2012:

Number of Participation
Shareholders shares
1 Clearstream Banking Luxembourg S.A. Clients 11 823 668 22.23%
2 Svalbork Invest OU 6 840 738 12.86%
3 Eurofiduciaria S.r.L. 6 828 916 12.84%
4 Sueno Latino AG 4 528 531 8.51%
5 A.F.l. American Financial Investments Ltd. 4 362 835 8.20%
6 Anndare Ltd. 3335582 6.27%
7 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 3178 201 5.98%

Participation of Member of the Management Board and the Council Members as of 31.12.2012;

Number of
Number of Participation convertible
Name Position shares in% bonds
Paolo Vittorio Michelozzi CEO 0 0.00 0
Allan Remmelkoor COoO 0 0.00 0
Chairman of the
Emanuele Bozzone Council 0 0.00 22 224
Sari Aitokallio Council Member 0 0.00 0
Petri Olkinuora Council Member 0 0.00 0
Pertti Huuskonen Council Member 0 0.00 0
Giuseppe Prevosti Council Member 4 447 597* 8.36 0
Renato Lorenzo Buliani Council Member 133 000 0.25 0

* Participation directly and through (a) UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG nominees account, (b) Zunis S.A
and (c) wife Donatella Grigioni
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Earnings per share

Earnings per share have dropped in fourth quarter by 0.02 euros to -0.11 EUR/share for 2012. Last
year's earnings per share for the same period have been at high of 0.53 EUR/share profitable sales of
Kristiine shopping centre and disposal of subsidiary SIA PK Investments in Latvia.

On 23 November 2012 the Company’s shares started trading on the secondary list of Tallinn’s stock
exchange. The shares were trading at the price range of 2.01- 2.23 during the reporting quarter with

the closing price of 2.15 EUR/share on 31 December 2012. During the period, 107 thousands of the
Company shares were traded, with their turnover amounting to 0.23 million euros.

Trading price range and trading amounts of Pro Kapital Grupp shares, 23
November - 31 December 2012
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Other events

Legal overview and developments

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had 5 pending court cases and 2 court cases where the
Company was involved as the third party.

Potentially the most significant legal dispute is held with Dutch resident Aprisco B.V., with possible
negative outcome up to 1.4 million euros. The Company has followed conservative approach and
provisioned the whole amount. Meanwhile, court mortgage claim has been executed on basement
premises located at Narva Road 13, their book value as of December 31, 2012 recorded at 40
thousand euros.

On 13 March 2013 the Company signed the settlement with Aprisco B.V., according to which Pro
Kapital Grupp paid out single settlement fee of 1 million euros and closed the court case described

above.

People

At the end of 2012 the Company employed 127 people compared to 136 at the end of 2011.77 of
them were engaged in hotel and property maintenance services (84 at the end of 2011). The total
remuneration cost incurred during 2012 was 1.97 million euros compared to 2.23 million euros 2011
(included one-time premiums in amount of 0.56 million euros for successful sale of Kristiine Shopping

Centre).

Risks

Market risk and liquidity risk are of the most significant influence on the Company. While real estate
market has demonstrated some significant fluctuations during last five years, due to its long- term
orientation in business model the Company has successfully survived the turbulence. The Company
is further pursuing long term strategic approach, enabling it to acquire properties for development
when market is low and sell the developed properties at the peak of business circle, thus naturally
capitalising on market opportunities and hedging market risk.

Liquidity risk is managed on ongoing basis, with increased focus on working capital dynamics and
needs. Both careful roll-on basis cash planning, monitoring of development project cash flow and
flexibility in everyday cash needs contribute to effective management of liquidity risk.

Asset risks are covered by effective insurance contracts.
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Corporate Governance Recommendations Report

Overview

Corporate governance constitutes a system of principles for the management of a Company. Such
principles are regulated by law, the Articles of Association, the internal rules of a Company and since
1 January 2006, the companies listed on the NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange are
recommended to follow the Corporate Governance Recommendations issued by the Financial
Supervision Authority.

The principles described in these Corporate Governance Recommendations are recommended to be
carried out by companies whose shares have been admitted to trading on a regulated market
operating in Estonia (hereinafter Issuers) and each Issuer shall decide whether or not they will adopt
these principles as a basis for organizing their management. Issuers shall describe, in accordance
with the Comply or Explain principle, their management practices in a Corporate Governance
Recommendations Report and confirm their compliance or not with the Corporate Governance
Recommendations. If the Issuer does not comply with Corporate Governance Recommendations, it
shall explain in the report the reasons for its non-compliance.

In general AS Pro Kapital Grupp complies with the Corporate Governance Recommendations except
to some of them.

The Management Board gives the following overview of the management practices of AS Pro Kapital
Grupp and confirms the compliance with the Corporate Governance Recommendations except to the
extent of non-compliance as described and explained below.

| GENERAL MEETING

AS Pro Kapital Grupp is a public limited Company, the management bodies of which are the
General Meeting of Shareholders, the Supervisory Council and the Management Board. The
General Meeting of Shareholders is the highest directing body.

1.1. Exercise of shareholders rights

1.1.1. Every shareholder has right to participate in the general meeting, to speak in the general
meeting on topics presented in the agenda, and to present reasoned questions and make
proposals. The exercise of shareholders’ rights are ensured in a way that it is not hindered by
unreasonable formalities or made inconvenient for shareholders in any other way. The
General Meeting is conducted at the location of the Company.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp enables shareholders to present questions on topics mentioned in the
agenda, including prior to the day of the General Meeting. In the notice calling the General
Meeting AS Pro Kapital Grupp includes the e-mail address to which the shareholders can
send questions. The Company guarantee a response to reasoned questions on the General
Meeting during hearing of a corresponding subject or before the holding of the General
Meeting giving shareholders enough time for examining the response. If possible, the
Company gives its responses to questions presented before holding the General Meeting and
shall publishes the question and response on its website. During 2012 no questions were
presented to the Company as to the topics of the agenda of the shareholders meetings.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp does not have a controlling shareholder as is defined in the Securities
Market Act.

1.1.2. Under the Articles of Association of AS Pro Kapital Grupp do not allow to grant different types
of shares with rights which would result in unequal treatment of shareholders in voting. There
are one types of shares issued, giving all shareholders exactly same rights attached to the

shares.

1.1.3. AS Pro Kapital Grupp facilitates the personal participation of shareholders at the General
Meeting. When calling the shareholders’ meeting a notice period is given. Before the listing of
AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares general meeting was called by giving three week notice and
extraordinary meeting was called by giving one week notice. Since the listing of the shares on
NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange a notice of at least three weeks is given for both
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1.2.1.

1.2.2.

general and extraordinary shareholders meetings. In the notice the exact place, date and time
of the meeting are stated.

The representative of AS Pro Kapital Grupp always participates in the General Meeting and is
accessible to the shareholders during the holding of the General Meeting.

Calling of a General Meeting and information to be published

As per the recommendation the notice of calling the General Meeting should be sent to
shareholders and/or published in daily national newspaper concurrently with making it
available on the Company's website.

Before the listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange
the Company did not publish the notice of calling the shareholders’ meeting on its website.
The notice was published in daily national newspaper. The reason for not following the
recommendation was that the "Corporate Governance Recommendations" are applicable to
companies listed on the NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange. Before the listing of the
shares the Company followed the common practise for not listed companies which was to
publish the notice of calling the shareholders’ meeting in daily national newspaper (for
companies with more than 50 shareholders) or send the notice directly to each shareholder
(for companies with less than 50 shareholders).

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation and is publishing the notice of calling the
shareholders’ meeting in daily national newspaper concurrently with making it available on the
Company’s website and the notice is also published via the NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders of AS Pro Kapital Grupp are notified the calling both an extraordinary
shareholders’ meeting and general shareholders’ meeting immediately after the decision is
made to call such meeting.

As per the recommendation the notice shall indicate the reason for calling the meeting and
who made the proposal to call it (e.g., Management Board, Supervisory Council, shareholders
or auditor). Information concerning the meeting shall be immediately published on Issuer’s
website.

Before the listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange
the Company did not indicate specifically the reason for calling the meeting. Each notice had
an agenda of the meeting with proposals by the Supervisory Council and Management Board
as to each agenda topic. The reason for not following the recommendation was that the
"Corporate Governance Recommendations” are applicable to companies listed on the
NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange and before the recommendations were binding to AS
Pro Kapital Grupp, the Company followed usual practice of the content of the notice for not
listed companies.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation and is stating in the notice also a summarized
reason for calling the shareholders’ meeting and the body who is calling the meeting.
Information about the meeting is published on the Company’s website.

The Management Board and Supervisory Council are delivering all information available to
them or essential information provided to them necessary for passing a resolution at the
General Meeting to shareholders concurrently with the notice of calling the General Meeting.
As per the recommendation Issuers shall provide the reasons for calling the General Meeting
and explanations for items included on the agenda, determining changes essential to
shareholder (for instance changing the articles of association, issuance of additional shares or
other securities associated with shares or extraordinary transactions the content of which is
the sale of all or a majority of the assets or the Company or which are concluded with a
person related to the Issuer).

As stated above, AS Pro Kapital Grupp has not complied with the recommendation to state
separately the reasons for calling the shareholders’ meeting. Before the listing of AS Pro
Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the Company did not
indicate specifically the reason for calling the shareholders’ meeting. Each notice had an
agenda of the shareholders’ meeting with proposals by the Supervisory Council and
Management Board as to each agenda topic. Before the listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp
shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange materials connected to the agenda of the
shareholders’ meeting have been made available in the office of AS Pro Kapital Grupp.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation and is stating in the notice also a summarized

|
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reason for calling the shareholders meeting. Materials related to the agenda are made
available via the Company’'s webpage concurrently with the notice of calling the General
Meeting.

If the General Meeting is called by shareholders, the Supervisory Council or auditor or if an
item has been entered on the agenda at the request of the Management Board or a
shareholder, the bodies or persons requesting the calling of General Meeting or entering an
item on the agenda shall provide their reasons and explanations.

As per the recommendation the shareholders shall be permitted to examine information
regarding questions shareholders have presented to the Issuer in connection with the holding
of the General Meeting if this information is connected with an agenda item of the General
Meeting. The Management Board or Supervisory Council has the right to withhold this
information, if this is in contravention of the Issuers interests. In such case, the Management
Board and Supervisory Council shall justify the withholding of the information.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp has indicated in each notice of calling the shareholders’ meeting a
contact email for the shareholders to contact in case they have any questions related to the
meeting. During the year of 2012 only questions related to clarification of documentation
needed to participate at the meeting were presented to the Company. As no questions
connected to the agenda topics were presented during 2012, AS Pro Kapital Grupp has not
published any questions of the shareholders or replies to the shareholders on the website.
Before the listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange
the Company the information provided to shareholders has been in Estonian. As of listing the
shares information provided to shareholders is in Estonian and English languages.

As per the recommendation the Management Board shall publish on the Issuer's website the
essential information connected with the agenda provided to it or otherwise available
concurrently with compliance with the General Meeting calling requirements provided by law.
Depending on the General Meeting agenda the essential information shall be deemed the
profit distribution proposal, draft articles of association together with an indication of the
proposed amendments; essential conditions and agreements or draft contracts issuance of
securities or other fransactions connected with the Company (e.g., merger, sale of property
etc.), information regarding candidates for Supervisory Council members or auditors etc.
Information shall be published concerning a Supervisory Council member candidates’
participation in Supervisory Councils, Management Boards or the management of other
companies.

As referred above AS Pro Kapital Grupp has not complied with the recommendation to
publish the referred information on its website prior to the listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp
shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange. Such materials were made available to the
shareholders at the office of the Company and such availability was always indicated in the
notice of calling the meeting.

As of listing the shares AS Pro Kapital Grupp is following the recommendation and is
publishing materials related to the meeting on the website of the Company.

Within a reasonable period of time prior to holding a General Meeting the Supervisory Council
shall publish its proposed agenda items on the Company’s website. If shareholders make
substantive proposals to items on the agenda or proposals diverging from those of the
Supervisory Council prior to the General Meeting the Company shall publish the proposals on
its website.

As of listing the shares AS Pro Kapital Grupp is following the recommendation. Before the
listing of the shares the proposals regarding the agenda were stated in the notice of calling
the meeting, but were not published on the website.

1.3. Procedure of the General Meeting

1.3.1.

The Chair of the General Meeting shall ensure that the General Meeting is conducted in a
smooth manner, i.e. swift while considering the interests of all interested parties. The General
Meeting shall be conducted in the Estonian.

During the year of 2012 AS Pro Kapital Grupp held two shareholders’ meetings. The annual
general meeting of the shareholders took place on 13 April 2012 and was held in English
language and was translated into ltalian language. The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting
took place on 14 August 2012 and was held in English. The reason for holding the meetings
in English was the fact that most of the participating shareholders were foreigners.
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As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation and is holding the shareholders’ meetings in
Estonian, translated into English.

As per the recommendation the Chairman of the Supervisory Council and members of the
Management Board cannot be elected as Chair of the General Meeting. Allan Remmelkoor,
the member of the Management Board of the Company was the chairman of both of the
shareholders meetings held in 2012. The reason for not following the recommendation was
that the "Corporate Governance Recommendations" are applicable to companies listed on the
NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation.

Members of the Management Board, the Chairman of the Supervisory Council and if possible,
the members of the Supervisory Council and at least one of the auditors shall participate in
the General Meeting.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp held two shareholders meetings in 2012. At least one member of the
Management Board participated at both of the shareholders meetings. Chairman of the
Supervisory Council Emanuele Bozzone participated at both of the shareholders’ meetings.

Auditor did not participate at the General Meeting. The reason for not following the
recommendation was that the "Corporate Governance Recommendations” are applicable to
companies listed on the NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange. As of listing of AS Pro
Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the Company is planning to
follow the recommendation.

Supervisory Council member candidates who have not formerly been a Supervisory Council
member and candidates for auditor shall participate in the General Meeting. At the 13 April
2012 shareholders’ meeting three new council members were elected. Pertti Huuskonen,
Petri Olkinuora and Sari Aitokallio as the candidates participated at the meeting.

As per the recommendation issuers shall make participation in the General Meeting possible
by means of communication equipment (Internet) if the technical equipment is available and
where doing so is not too cost prohibitive for the Issuer.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp has not followed the recommendation and does not plan to follow the
recommendation and making participation in the General Meeting possible by means of
communication equipment (Internet). The reason for not following the recommendation is that
there is no good and cost-efficient technical solution to verify the identities of foreign
shareholders, who form the majority of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shareholders. Therefore
allowing the participation of the shareholders by means of communication equipment poses
legal risks to the Company, in verifying the list of participants of the shareholders meeting.

As per the recommendation the profit distribution has been considered in General Meeting as
a separate agenda topics and a separate resolution has been passed regarding it.

MANAGEMENT BOARD
Duties

The Management Board is making independent day-to-day decision without favouring
personal and/or controlling shareholder's interests.

The Management Board is making decisions based on the best interests of AS Pro Kapital
Grupp and all shareholders and ensures the reasonable development of the Company
according to goals and strategy set.

The Management Board is using its best efforts to ensure that the Company and all
companies belonging to Pro Kapital group comply in their activities with current legislation in
force.

The Management Board ensures that it undertakes proper risk management and internal
audit controls in the activities of the Company and those proceeding from its activities.

To guarantee proper risk management and internal audit the Management Board:

- on reoccurring basis analyses the risks connected with the purpose of the activities and
financial objectives of the Company;

- has prepared adequate internal control provisions;
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- elaborated forms for drawing up financial reports and instructions for drawing up these
reports; and
- organized the system of control and reporting.

Composition and charge

The Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp has two Management Board members. The
Supervisory Council has established an area of responsibility for each member of the
Management Board, defining the duties and powers of each board member. The principles for
co-operation between members of the board have been established.

As per the recommendation the Chairman of the Supervisory Council shall conclude a
contract of service with each member of the board for discharge of their functions. AS Pro
Kapital Grupp is following the recommendation only partially. Member of the Management
Board Allan Remmelkoor does not have a service contract with AS Pro Kapital Grupp, but the
groups’ subsidiary holding companies in Estonia and Latvia have concluded a service
contracts with Allan Remmelkoor. Allan Remmelkoor is also the Management Board member
of Estonian and Latvian subgroup holding companies.

As per the recommendation the member of the Management Board shall not be at the same
time a member of more than two Management Boards of an Issuer and shall not be the
Chairman of the Supervisory Council of another Issuer. A member of the Management Board
can be the Chairman of the Supervisory Council in Company belonging to same group as the
Issuer.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp Management Board members do not belong to Management Boards of
any other Issuers. Allan Remmelkoor was until 18 June 2012 the Supervisory Council
member of other Issuer AS Balltika.

As per the recommendation the bases for Management Board remuneration shall be clear
and transparent. The Supervisory Council shall discuss and review regularly the bases for
Management Board remuneration.

Upon determination of the Management Board remuneration, the Supervisory Council is
guided by evaluation of the work of the Management Board members. Upon evaluation of the
work of the Management Board members, the Supervisory Council is taking into consideration
the duties of each member of the Management Board, their activities, the activities of the
entire Management Board, the economic condition of the Company, the actual state and
future prediction and direction of the business in comparison with the same indicators of
companies in the same economic sector. Remuneration of members of the Management
Board, including bonus schemes, shall be such that they motivate the member to act in the
best interest of the Issuer and refrain from acting in their own or another person’s interest.
Remuneration of the Management Board Member Paolo Michelozzi is determined by the
Supervisory Council and agreed in the service contract concluded for three years with the
Management Board Member. Remuneration of the Management Board Member Allan
Remmelkoor is determined by the Management Board Member Paolo Michelozzi and
approved by the Supervisory Councils of the Groups’ subsidiary holding companies in Estonia
and Latvia.

As per the recommendation the use of long-term bonus systems (for example options,
pension programs) shall be connected with the activities of the Management Board member
and shall be based on explicit and comparable pre-determined factors. The factors, which are
the basis for determining the bonus scheme, shall not be changed retroactively.

Both Management Board Members have bonus systems agreed, which are based on explicit
and pre-determined factors taking place.

As per the recommendation the bonus scheme of a Management Board member that is
connected with the securities of the Issuer, as well as changes in such bonus schemes shall
be approved at the General Meeting of the Issuer. The exercise date for share option shall be
determined at the General Meeting of the Issuer. When granting share options, the Issuer
shall comply with the rules and regulations of the Tallinn Stock Exchange.

Management Board does not have a bonus scheme connected to the securities of AS Pro
Kapital Grupp.
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As per the recommendation severance packages of a Management Board member are
connected with their prior work performance and shall not be payable if doing so would harm
the interests of the Issuer.

Both Management Board members have severance packages agreed in their service
contracts. Severance compensation is not payable in case the Management Board member is
recalled due to the breach of its obligations.

As per the recommendation basic wages, performance pay, severance packages, other
payable benefits and bonus schemes of a Management Board member as well as their
essential features (incl. features based on comparison, incentives and risk) shall be published
in clear and unambiguous form on website of the Issuer and in the Corporate Governance
Recommendations Report. Information published shall be deemed clear and unambiguous if it
directly expresses the amount of expense to the Issuer or the amount of foreseeable expense
as of the day of disclosure. The Chairman of the Supervisory Council shall present the
essential aspects of the Management Board remuneration and changes in it to the General
Meeting. If the remuneration of some of the Management Board members has occurred on a
different base, then the General Meeting shall be presented the differences together with the
reasons therefore.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp is not following this recommendation. The Company is of opinion that
disclosing the remuneration on individual basis for the Management Board would harm the
interest of the Company, by allowing this sensitive information to be disclosed to the
competitors of the Company. Same practise of non-disclosure is used by most of the
NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange listed companies. AS Pro Kapital Grupp is publishing
in the consolidated annual report of the Company the remuneration of the management and
key personnel of the whole group, as an aggregate amount.

Conflict of interests

Members of the Management Board avoid conflicts of interests in their activity. Member of the
Management Board do not make decisions on the basis of their own interests or use business
offers addressed to AS Pro Kapital Grupp in their own interests

As per the recommendation the members of the Management Board shall inform the
Supervisory Council and other members of the Management Board regarding the existence of
a conflict of interests before the conclusion of a contract of service and immediately upon
arising of it later. Members of the Management Board shall promptly inform other
Management Board members and the Chairman of the Supervisory Council of any business
offer related to business activity of the Company made to them, a person close to them or a
person connected with them. Persons close to members of the Management Board include
spouses, children who are minors and persons having shared a household with them for at
least one year. Persons connected with members of the Management Board include civil law
partnerships or legal persons managed or controlled by them or persons close to them as well
as the civil law partnerships or legal persons whose management is significantly influenced by
them or persons close to them or which is made for the benefit of them or persons close to
them and which economic interests are to a significant extent similar with their economic
interests or economic interests of persons close to them.

As per the Commercial Code the Supervisory Council has to approve the transactions
between the Company and a member of its Management Board.

There have been two transactions with Management Board members in 2012, which were
approved by the Supervisory Council. A new service contract was approved and concluded
with the Management Board member Mr. Paolo Michelozzi. An amendment to the car rental
agreement concluded with Management Board member Allan Remmelkoor was approved by
the Supervisory Council.

A member of the Management Board are obliged stricilly adhere to the prohibitions of
competition prescribed by the Commercial Code (Commercial Code § 312) and are obliged to
promptly inform the Supervisory Council of their intention to engage directly or indirectly in an
enterprise in the same field of activity as the Company.

Members of the Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp do not engage in other active
duties alongside their duties as members of the Management Board.

As per the recommendation a member of the Management Board or employee of the Issuer
shall not demand or take money or other benefits from third parties in connection with their

a
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work and shall not provide unlawful or ungrounded advantages to third parties in name of the
Issuer.

According to the knowledge of members of the Management Board, which is based on the
internal control procedures the Company, the Company is following the recommendation.

SUPERVISORY COUNCIL
Duties

The duty of the Supervisory Council is to manage internal control of the Management Board
activities. The Supervisory Council participates in making important decisions relating to the
activities of the Company. The Supervisory Council acts independently and in the best
interests of the Company and all shareholders.

The Supervisory Council determines and regularly reviews the Company’s strategy, general
plan of action, principles of risk management and annual budget. The Supervisory Council
together with the Management Board ensures the long-term pianning of the Company'’s
activity.

The Supervisory Council has approved the risk management policy of the Company, which is
implemented in the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The Supervisory Council also
approves the annual budget of the Company. The Supervisory Council has actively discussed
the progress of the development projects of the Company and the necessary financing to start
with the development projects.

The Chairman of the Supervisory Council is in regular contact with the Chief Executive Officer
and discusses the issues related to the Company's strategy, business activity and risk
management.

The Chief Executive Officer has the obligation to inform the Chairman of the Supervisory
Council of any significant events, which may affect the Company’s development and
management. The Chairman of the Supervisory Council has to inform the Supervisory Council
of it and call a meeting of the Supervisory Council if necessary.

The Supervisory Council regularly assesses the activities of the Management Board and its
implementation of the Company’s strategy, financial condition, risk management system, the
lawfulness of the Management Board activities and whether essential information concerning
the Company has been communicated to the Supervisory Council and the public as required.
Supervisory Council meets at least once per quarter, before publication of the Company’s
quarterly reports and reviews the report and the Management Board review of the activities
performed during the quarter prior to the publication of the quarterly reports. Supervisory
Council has established the audit committee comprising of Emanuele Bozzone, Sari Aitokallio
and Pertti Huuskonen, all Supervisory Council's members of the Company.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp has not published the existence, duties, membership and position in the
audit committee on its website as at the time of the formation of the audit committee AS Pro
Kapital Grupp was not a listed Company. The Company plans to start following the
recommendation during the financial year of 2013.

The Chairman of the Supervisory Council manages the work of the Supervisory Council.

The Chairman of the Supervisory Council determines the agenda of the Supervisory Council
meeting, chairs the meetings, monitors the efficiency of the Supervisory Council's work,
organizes the transmission of information to the members of the Supervisory Council, ensures
that the Supervisory Council has enough time to prepare for decisions and examines
information and represents the Supervisory Council in communications with the Management
Board.

Composition and charge
The members of the Supervisory Council are elected from persons having sufficient

knowledge and experience for participation in the work of the Supervisory Council.
Information about the members of the Supervisory Council:
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Name Citizenship Year of Member Position  Current term
birth since expires

Emanuele Bozzone Swiss 1964 05.07.2010 Chairman 05.07.2013
Sari Aitokallio Finnish 1960 13.04.2012  Member 31.03.2013*
Renato Lorenzo Bullani Italian 1945 05.07.2010 Member 05.07.2013
Pertti Huuskonen Finnish 1956 13.04.2012  Member 13.04.2015
Petri Olkinuora Finnish 1957 13.04.2012 Member 13.04.2015
Giuseppe Prevosti ltalian 1946 05.07.2010 Member 05.07.2013

* Ms Sari Aitokallio announced on 21 January 2013 of her resignation from the Supervisory Council
as of 31 March 2013. She explained that the resignation from the Supervisory Council was due to
time constraints and a possible conflict of interest in the future, emphasizing that no conflict of
interests has not existed and will not exist during her term in the Supervisory Council.

Mr Emanuele Bozzone holds a degree in economics and trade. Mr Bozzone has a vast experience in
finance. He has been a manager and independent consultant in the finance field since 1999. Mr
Bozzone is a Swiss licensed fiduciary. From 2010 Mr Bozzone is a director, wealth manager and
partner in Regis Invest SA in Lugano, Switzerland; from 2005 a sole director, founder and partner in
EBTG e Associati SA (formerly named Bozzone E Associati SA) in Chiasso, Switzerland. Additionally,
he is a sole director, founder and partner in EBCO Fiduciaria SA in Chiasso, Switzerland. Mr Bozzone
is also holding a senior managing position in EBCO Trustees Sagl in Chiasso, Switzerland.

Ms Sari Aitokallio holds a Master of Laws (LLM) degree. Ms Aitokallio is a Senior Vice President in
the field of finance and administration in Metso Automation Inc. (Business division of Metso
Corporation, Finland). Previously she has also been a member of the Board of Directors of Arctia
Shipping Oy (former Finstaship) (2006-2011), Kemira GrowHow Inc. (2004-2007) and Chief Financial
Officer of Sponda Plc. (2002-2006). Additionally, Ms Aitokallio has been a member of the Board of
Directors of SOS Children's Villages Finland until 2011. Currently she is a member of the Board of
SOS Children’s Villages Foundation Finland.

Mr Renato Lorenzo Bullani holds a federal qualification in economics, specialized in financing and
accounting. Mr Bullani has a financing background. He has worked for Banca Popolare Svizzera of
Chiasso. Currently Mr Bullani is the Chief Executive Officer of Fiduciaria Studio Renato Bullani. He is
also a director of freight Company Rusconi & Cippa SA in Chiasso and a self-employed fiduciary
accountant since 1972. Mr Bullani is also a partner and vice-chairman of Fiduciaria Mega S.A.
(ChiassolLugano).

Mr Pertti Huuskonen holds M.Sc. (Eng.) and eMBA degrees. Mr Huuskonen has a vast experience
in planning and preparation of acquisitions. Mr Huuskonen has inter alia considerable experience in
developing modern service concepts in the field of real estate and executing business, in planning
and leasing of commercial premises, land consolidation, property transaction and property
development. Mr Huuskonen has been a member of the Board of Directors of Technopolis Plc. since
2008 (whereas he was the full-time Chairman of the Board of Directors of Technopolis Plc. during
2008-2011). Since 2011 he is holding several positions (including the Chief Executive Officer) in the
investment and consulting Company Lunacon Oy (investments and consulting), which is a Company
owned by Mr Huuskonen. He is also a member of the Board of Kaleva Oy, the largest media
Company in North Finland, and the Chairman of the Board of LapTi-Invest Oy (day care & senior
living facilities). Previously Mr Huuskonen has inter alia been the President and CEO of Technopolis
Plc. (1985-2008), the chairman of the supervisory council of Technopolis Ulemiste AS (2010-2011), a
member of the Board of Detection Technology Oy (2002-2007). Mr Huuskonen is also Academic
Executive Advisor in Oulu Business School (since 2011) and the Honorary Consul of Sweden in Oulu
Province, Finland (since 1997).

Mr Petri Olkinuora holds M.Sc. (construction engineering) and MBA degrees. Mr Olkinuora has a
long and successful career as the CEO of Citycon Oyj (a Helsinki based listed property Company),
vast experience in real estate, acquisition, finance and development. Mr Olkinuora is the Deputy
Chairman of the Board of BPT Asset Management A/S (leading real estate asset manager around the
Baltic Sea area) (since 2011) and a member of the Board of A-Insindérit Oy (leading engineering
Company in Finland) (since 2011), Tapiolan jalkapallostadion Oy (developer of the first closed roof
football stadium and arena) (since 2012), Koja-Yhtiot Oy (industrial Company making ventilation
machines for buildings and ships) (since 2004), Rapal Oy (software Company which developed
Optimaze and Fore programmes) (since 2002), VRP Rakennuspalvelut Oy (small residential
developer and construction Company in Finland) (since 2012) and Tampereen Keskusareena Oy (a
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Company that will develop a grand ice hockey and event arena in Tampere, Finland) (since 2012). He
is also a Supervisory- Council member of Hartela-Yhtiét Oy (a Finnish construction Company and
developer, which, according to Mr Olkinuora, does not operate in the Baltic countries) (since 2013).
Mr Olkinuora is also running his own investment business within Forbia Oy, which is providing
advisory services in property and construction related companies (since 2011). During 2002 — 2011
Mr Olkinuora was the Chief Executive Officer of Citycon Oyj, a Helsinki based real estate Company
active in Finland, Sweden and the Baltic States and a board member of several of its subsidiaries
(real estate and holding companies). Mr Olkinuora has also, inter alia, served as the Deputy Chairman
(2002-2003) and a Board Member (2007-2009) of the Board of Finnish Association for Building
Owners RAKLI ry, member of the Board of European Public Real Estate Association EPRA (2006-
2009) and a founding member of the Board of Finnish Green Building Association ry (2010-2012).

Mr Giuseppe Prevosti holds a diploma in land surveying. Since April 2012 Mr Prevosti is the
chairman of the Board of Directors of Preca Brummel S.p.A, a market leader in ltaly in the field of
children’'s wear, which owns several successful brands popular over Europe in the children’s wear
category (BRUMS; BIMBUS; MEK; SUOMY etc.). During the period from 1981 to March 2010 he was
the General Manager of Preca Brummel S.p.A.

Upon the election of a member of the Supervisory Council, the nature of the Supervisory
Council's and the Company’s activities, the risks of conflict of interests and if necessary the
age of the potential member are taken into account.

3.2.2. As per the recommendation at least half of the members of the Supervisory Council of the
Issuer shall be independent. If the Supervisory Council has an odd number of members, then
there may be one independent member less than the number dependent members.

According to the belief of the Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp the
recommendation is followed.

Mr Emanuele Bozzone — the Chairman of the Supervisory Council is not considered
independent member of the Council due to the formality of him being a Chairman of the
Council of a subsidiary company AS Taismaja belonging to the group.

Ms Sari Aitokallio — is considered an independent Council member.

Mr Renato Lorenzo Bullani — is not considered independent member of the Council due to
the fact that he is a member of the governing bodies of many different shareholders and has
represented many different shareholders and has business relationships with many different
shareholders.

Mr Pertti Huuskonen - is considered an independent Council member. Mr Pertti Huuskonen
provided consultant services to the Company prior to being elected as Council member, but
remuneration for such services was insignificant.

Mr Petri Olkinuora - is considered an independent Council member. Mr Petri Olkinuora
provided consultant services to the Company prior to being elected as Council member, but
remuneration for such services was insignificant.

Mr Giuseppe Prevosti - is considered an independent Council member. He holds a minority
shareholding in the Company, which is less than 10%.

3.2.3. As per the recommendation a member of the Supervisory Council and the Chairman of the
Supervisory Council in particular shall ensure that they have enough time to perform the
duties of a Supervisory Council member.

According to the belief of the Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp the
recommendation is followed.

3.24. As per the recommendation upon determination of the remuneration of members of the
Supervisory Council, the General Meeting shall take into consideration the duties of the
Supervisory Council and their scope and the economic situation of the Company. Based on
the nature of the Chairman of the Supervisory Council's work, the related requirements of that
work may be taken into consideration upon determination of remuneration amount.

According to the belief of the Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp the
recommendation is followed.

3.2.5. As per the recommendation the amount of remuneration of a member of the Supervisory
Council shall be published in the Corporate Governance Recommendations Report, indicating
separately basic and additional payment (incl. compensation for termination of contract and
other payable benefits).
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The shareholders’ meeting which took place on 13 April 2012 resolved to remunerate Council
members Pertti Huuskonen, Petri Olkinuora and Sari Aitokallio each in amount of 25 thousand
euros per year (gross). In addition a fee of 0.6 thousand euros (gross) shall be paid to the
Council member for each attended meeting.

The shareholders’ meeting which took place on 14 August 2012 resolved to remunerate
Council members Renato Lorenzo Bullani and Giuseppe Prevosti each in amount of 25
thousand euros per year (gross). The same shareholders’ meeting resolved to remunerate the
Chairman of the Council Emanuele Bozzone in amount of 27.5 thousand euros per year
(gross). In addition a fee of 0.6 thousand euros (gross) shall be paid to the Council member
for each attended meeting. The same shareholders’ meeting resolved to compensate all
Council members their travel and accommodation expenses relating to participation in the
Supervisory Council meeting and in the meetings of the committees. The same shareholders’
meeting resolved to pay Supervisory Council's members Renato Lorenzo Bullani and
Giuseppe Prevosti onetime fee of 10 thousand euros (net) and pay the Chairman of the
Council Emanuele Bozzone onetime fee of 15 thousand euros (net). The onetime fee was
paid due to the fact that Renato Lorenzo Bullani, Giuseppe Prevosti and Emanuele Bozzone
did not receive any remuneration prior to the shareholders decision of 14 August 2012.
Supervisory Council members are not entitled to any compensation for termination.

As per the recommendation if a member of the Supervisory Council has attended less than
half of the meetings of the Supervisory Council, this shall be indicated separately in the
Corporate Governance Recommendations Report.

During 2012 in total 8 meetings of the Supervisory Council were held. None of the Council
Members participated in less than half of the meetings.

Conflict of interests

As per the recommendation members of the Supervisory Council shall prevent conflict of
interests from arising through their activities. Members of the Supervisory Council shall give
preference to interests of the Company over their own or those of a third party upon his word
as a member of the Supervisory Council. Members of the Supervisory Council shall not use
business offers addressed to the Issuer for their personal interests. The Supervisory Council
shall operate in the best interests of the Issuer and all shareholders.

According to the belief of the Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp the
recommendation is followed.

As per the recommendation a Supervisory Council member candidate shall inform other
members of the Supervisory Council about the existence of conflict of interests before their
election and immediately upon arising of it later. Members of the Supervisory Council shall
promptly inform the Chairman of the Supervisory Council and Management Board regarding
any business offer related to the business activity of the Issuer made to him, a person close to
him or a person connected with him.

All conflicts of interests that have arisen in preceding year shall be indicated in the Corporate
Governance Recommendations Report along with their resolutions.

The persons close to a member of the Supervisory Council are spouses, a minor child and a
person having shared a household with them for at least one year. Persons connected with a
member of the Supervisory Council are civil law partnerships or legal persons managed or
controlled by them or persons close to them as well as the civil law partnerships or legal
persons whose management is significantly influenced by them or person close to them or
which is made for their benefit or the benefit of a person close to them and which economic
interests are to a significant extent similar with their economic interests or the economic
interests of a person close to them.

According to the belief of the Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp the
recommendation is followed. No conflict of interest had occurred during the financial year of
2012.

As per the recommendation a member of the Supervisory Council shall resign or be removed
if their conflict of interests is of material and permanent nature.

Council member Ms Sari Aitokallio announced on 21 January 2013 of her resignation from the
Supervisory Council as of 31 March 2013. She explained that the resignation from the
Supervisory Council was due to time constraints and a possible conflict of interest in the
future, emphasizing that no conflict of interests has not existed and will not exist during her
term in the Supervisory Council.

'5
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As per the recommendation a member of the Supervisory Council shall strictly adhere to the
prohibition of competition prescribed by the Commercial Code (Commercial Code § 324) and
shall promptly inform other members of Supervisory Council of their intention to engage in an
enterprise in the same field of activity as the Company.

According to the belief of the Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp the
recommendation is followed.

CO-OPERATION OF MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY COUNCIL

Management Board and Supervisory Council co-operate closely for the purpose of better
protection of Company’s interests. The Management Board and Supervisory Council jointly
develop plans and principles of activities and strategy of the Company. The Management
Board operates under strategic guidelines provided by the Supervisory Council and discusses
its strategic management questions with the Supervisory Council regularly. The Management
Board and Supervisory Council division of tasks are regulated in the Articles of Association of
the Company. The Supervisory Council is a directing body of the Company which plans the
activities of the Company, organises the management of the Company and supervises the
activities of the Management Board. The Supervisory Council shall notify the general meeting
of shareholders of the results of supervision.

The Supervisory Council approves the budget of the Company.

The Management Board needs the consent of the Supervisory Council for concluding
transactions which are beyond the scope of everyday economic activities of the Company
and, above all, for concluding transactions which bring about:

- the acquisition or termination of holdings in other companies; or

- the acquisition, transfer or dissolution of a business; or

- the transfer of inmovable or registered movables the value whereof exceeds 300 thousand
euros, and encumbrance of immovable or registered immovable (of any value); or

- the foundation or closure of foreign branches; or

- the making of investments exceeding a prescribed sum of expenditure for the current
financial year; or

- the assumption of loans or debt obligations exceeding a prescribed sum for the current
financial year (except intra-group loans); or

- the granting of loans or the guarantee of debt obligations (except intra-group loans) if this is
beyond the scope of everyday economic activities.

The general meeting of shareholders may grant the Supervisory Council the right to increase
share capital to the extent and pursuant to the procedure provided by the Commercial Code.
The Management Board is a directing body of the Company which represents and directs the
Company. The Management Board shall, in directing the Company, act in compliance with the
articles of association and lawful orders of the Supervisory Council

Each member of the Management Board may represent the Company alone in all legal acts.
The Management Board appoints and dismisses the Company's directors and person
responsible for accounting (the executive management). The Management Board approves
the scope of authority of such persons.

The Management Board and the Supervisory Council ensure that the mutual exchange of
data shall be adequate and efficient.

The Management Board informs the Supervisory Council regularly of all material
circumstances, which pertain to planning of the Company’s activities, business activities, risks
connected with its activities and management of those risks. The Management Board
separately calls attention to such changes in the business activities of the Company deviating
from plans and purposes set formerly and indicates the reasons of such changes. The
information is delivered promptly and covers all material circumstances.

The Supervisory Council has specified the conditions for the delivery of information by the
Management Board and its content. The Management Board sends data necessary for the
Supervisory Council decision making, including the financial statements, the financial
statements of the consolidation group and the auditor's report to the Supervisory Council in
sufficient time before the Supervisory Council meeting.

The Members of the Management Board and Supervisory Council observe the rules of

confidentiality upon organization of the mutual exchange of data ensuring above all the
control over the transfer of price sensitive information.
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The Management Board has ensured the observance of the rules of confidentiality by
employees of the Company, who access such information. Management Board has
established rules on handling the insider information, established the circle of permanent
insiders and rules for submitting insiders declarations to the Company and appointed the
person to handle the insiders register.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION

The Company treats all shareholders equally and notifies all shareholders equally of material
circumstances.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company uses NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange to communicate with the shareholders
and uploads the information to the Company’s website upon notification of shareholders and
investors through the stock exchange.

The web site of the Company has the investors section and information is published both in
Estonian and English.

The Company did not publish in the beginning of the financial year of 2012 the investors
calendar (disclosure dates of information subject to disclosure throughout a year including the
annual report, interim reports and notice calling a general meeting) as the Company’s shares
were not listed on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange. As of listing of AS Pro Kapital
Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the Company is following the
recommendation and is publishing the investors’ calendar through the stock exchange and its
website.

As per the recommendation on the Issuers web site the following shall be accessible to the
shareholders:

- report on Corporate Governance Recommendations

- date, place, and agenda of the General Meeting and other information related to the General
Meeting;

- articles of association;

- general strategy directions of the Issuer as approved by Supervisory Council;

- membership of the Management Board and Supervisory Council;

- information regarding the auditor;

- annual report;

- interim reports;

- agreements between shareholders concerning concerted exercise of shareholders rights (if
those are concluded and known to the Issuer);

- other information, published on the basis of these Corporate Governance
Recommendations.

Before AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares were listed on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange
the Company did not follow the recommendation. The reason for not following the
recommendation was that the "Corporate Governance Recommendations” are applicable to
companies listed on the NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation and is publishing on its website the required
information. As to the knowledge of the Company there are no agreements between
shareholders concerning concerted exercise of shareholders rights.

As per the recommendation the Management Board and the Supervisory Council shall
describe the management practices of the Issuer including their compliance with these
Corporate Governance Recommendations in the annual report presented to General Meeting.
If the management of the Issuer deviates from the management structure described in these
Corporate Governance Recommendations the Management Board and Supervisory Council
shall justify the deviation.

The Management Board and the Supervisory Council shall also describe in the report
presented at the General Meeting any circumstances required under these Corporate
Governance Recommendations.

Before AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares were listed on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange
the Company did not follow the recommendation. The consolidated annual report 2011
presented to the shareholders did not include the Corporate Governance Recommendations.
The reason for not following the recommendation was that the "Corporate Governance
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Recommendations” are applicable to companies listed on the NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock
Exchange.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation and is including in the consolidated annual report
the overview of compliance with the Corporate Governance Recommendations.

As per the recommendation if the Issuer notifies financial analysts or other persons of facts or
estimates related to the Issuer, they shall also publish this information to shareholders the
Issuer's website.

Inside information disclosed at the General Meeting in response to questions presented by
shareholders or other means and which has not been formerly disclosed shall be published by
the Issuer immediately after holding of the General Meeting.

The Company has not notified financial analysts of any estimates which have not been made
public during the listing of the Company's shares or thereafter.

From time to time the Company discloses sensitive information to persons with whom the
Company is holding business negotiations.

As per the Requirements for Issuers of NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange an Issuer
does not need to disclose information about the progress of business negotiations. An Issuer
may give such undisclosed information confidentially to persons with whom it is holding or
intends to hold business negotiations. In such cases the Company always signs a non-
disclosure confidentiality agreement and notifies the party to the negotiations of the fact that
any inside information cannot be used for insider trading. The Company registers such
persons as temporary insiders in the insiders register.

As per the recommendation the Issuer shall organize the exchange of information with
journalists and analyst after a careful consideration. The Issuer shall refrain from
compromising the independence of the analyst or the Issuer's independence from analyst
when communicating with analysts. The Issuer shall disclose the dates and places of
meetings with analysts and presentations and press conferences organized for analysts,
investors or institutional investors on its website. The Issuer shall not arrange meetings with
analysts and presentations organized for investors directly before dates of publishing a
financial report (interim reports, consolidated annual report).

According to the belief of the Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp the
recommendation is followed.

The Company has not had any meetings with analysts after the listing of the Company shares
on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT
Reporting

As per the recommendations Issuers shall publish annually its consolidated annual report
and within a fiscal year its interim reports. The Management Board shall draw up consolidated
financial statements, which shall be audited by the auditor and the Supervisory Council. On
meeting of the Supervisory Council, where the consolidated financial statements shall be
reviewed the auditor of the Issuer shall participate upon invitation of the Supervisory Council.
Members of the Management Board of the Issuer and other persons belonging to
management shall leave the meeting during the auditor reports the most material conclusions
of audit. The shareholders shall be presented the consolidated annual report signed by
members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Council for examination. Together
with consolidated annual report, the Supervisory Council shall make available to shareholders
the written report concerning the annual report specified in § 333 subsection 1 of Commercial
Code.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation.

Before the listing of the shares the auditor did not participate at the Council meeting where the
consolidated financial statements were reviewed.

As per the recommendation the Issuer shall publish an annex of the consolidated financial

statements including a list of companies not belonging to the Issuer's group, in which the
holding of Issuer has significant importance to the Issuer. The Issuer shall disclose the
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business name, location, and size of the holding, area of activity, amount of share capital, and
net profit or loss during the previous financial year of this Company.

There are no companies in which AS Pro Kapital Grupp has participation, which do not belong
to AS Pro Kapital Grupp group of companies.

As per the recommendation the annexes to the consolidated financial statements shall
contain information regarding the connections of the Issuer with shareholders which are
deemed to be connected persons pursuant to standards of international financial reporting
provided for in sub section 17 (2) of the Accounting Act.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company is following the recommendation.

Election of the Auditor and Auditing of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Together with Notice Calling the General Meeting the Supervisory Council shall make
available to shareholders information on a candidate for auditor, including information on their
business connections specified below. If there is a desire to appoint an auditor who has
audited Company’s reports on previous financial year the Supervisory Council shall pass
judgment on their work.

Before the Supervisory Council presents a candidate of auditor for election in a General
meeting, the Supervisory Council shall require from a candidate for auditor an overview of
what kind of connection pertaining to work, economic connection or other connection possibly
affecting the independence of the auditor exists between the auditor, its management body
and the auditors in charge on one side and the Company and its management body on other
side.

The Supervisory Council shall describe in its evaluation report to judgment of the auditors
work inter alia the services (including advisory services) that the auditor has provided to the
Company during the preceding year or shall provide during the next year. Also the
remuneration the Company has paid or shall pay to the auditor shall be published.

If the Supervisory Council makes a proposal to elect a new auditor it shall justify to the
General Meeting its reasons for terminating the contract with previous auditor.

Before the listing of the shares of AS Pro Kapital Grupp the Company did not follow the
recommendation to inform the shareholders on information of the auditor candidate business
connections. The Supervisory Council did also not require from a candidate for auditor an
overview of what kind of connection pertaining to work, economic connection or other
connection possibly affecting the independence of the auditor exists between the auditor, its
management body and the auditors in charge on one side and the Company and its
management body on other side. The Company did not describe the auditors work inter alia
the services (including advisory services) that the auditor has provided to the Company during
the preceding year or shall provide during the next year. Also the remuneration the Company
has paid or shall pay to the auditor was not published.

During 2012 AS Deloitte Advisory has provided advisory services to AS Pro Kapital Grupp in
relation to IPO readiness diagnostics and AS Deloitte Audit Eesti provided services to AS Pro
Kapital Grupp in relation to compilation of the combined financial statements for periods of
2009, 2010 and 2011. The Company does not disclose the amount of the audit fee because
its non-disclosure does not affect the reliability of the audit services provided by the auditor.
As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange AS
Pro Kapital Grupp is intending to follow the recommendation in electing the auditor for the
audit of the financial year of 2013.

As per the recommendation before entering a contract for auditing services with an auditor,
the Management Board shall present the Supervisory Council with the draft contract for
approval. In a contract to be concluded with an auditor, above all the auditor's functions,
timetable and remuneration shall be agreed upon. The Issuer shall not conclude a contract,
indicating that disclosure of remuneration payable for auditing is breach of contract.

Pursuant to the contract the auditor obliges to promptly inform the Chairman of the
Supervisory Council of any danger to the independence or professionalism of their work that
becomes evident during the course of their work, unless the danger is promptly eliminated.
Pursuant to the contract, the auditor shall oblige to promptly inform the Supervisory Council of
any material circumstances that become known to them that may affect the work of the
Supervisory Council and management of the Issuer.

The contract to be concluded with an auditor shall not in any manner hinder the auditor's
evaluation of the Issuer’s activities.
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During 2012 before the listing of the shares AS Pro Kapital Grupp did not follow the
recommendation. The reason for not following the recommendation was that the "Corporate
Governance Recommendations” are applicable to companies listed on the NASDAQ OMX
Tallinn Stock Exchange.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange, AS
Pro Kapital Grupp intends to follow the recommendation in agreeing on the audit of the
financial year of 2013, excluding the disclosure of the remuneration payable for auditing as
the disclosure of such sensitive information would damage the competitive position of the
audit firm.

As per the recommendation upon organizing the rotation of auditors, the Issuer shall comply
with guidelines of the Financial Supervision Authority from 24 September 2003, “Rotation of
auditors of certain entities under state supervision.”

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company has followed the recommendation.

Pursuant to the contract the auditor obliges to disclose to the Supervisory Council and at the
General Meeting the facts, which become evident to them during the course of exercising of a
regular audit, indicating non-compliance with the Corporate Governance Recommendations
by the Management Board or the Supervisory Council. The Auditor shall prepare a
memorandum to the Company regarding these facts along with the auditor's report. The
auditor shall not reflect in the memorandum the facts that the Management Board has
explained in the Corporate Governance Recommendations Report.

In consolidated annual report 2011 presented to the shareholders for approval in the financial
year of 2012, prior to the listing of the shares of the Company, the recommendation was not
followed. The reason for not following the recommendation was that the "Corporate
Governance Recommendations” are applicable to companies listed on the NASDAQ OMX
Tallinn Stock Exchange.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company intends to follow the recommendation and the auditor shall prepare the
memorandum on compliance with the Corporate Governance Recommendations.

As per the recommendation the General Meeting, Supervisory Council and Management
Board shall enable auditor to carry out the auditing according to international auditing
standards.

Consolidated financial statements of AS Pro Kapital Grupp are audited in accordance with
international auditing standards.

Upon introducing the findings of the audit to the Supervisory Council, the Auditor shall present
inter alia:

- an overview of the progress of the audit, co-operation with employees subject to the internal
audit and the Management Board as well as important issues discussed with the
Management Board and proposals which were not accepted by the Management Board on
drawing up the annual report;

- an overview of the independence of the auditor and the absence of conflict of interests
during the audit;

- an analysis of changes in shareholders' equity and circumstances not entered in the report
subject to disclosure, yet having significant importance upon the understanding of the
financial condition and performance of the Company;

- their own opinion regarding one-off items, accounting policy used in book-keeping
concerning them and the effect of it;

- his or her own opinion regarding financial forecasts made and the quality of the budget.

The Auditor shall present an overview, analysis and opinion described above in writing to the
Supervisory Council.

While presenting the consolidated annual report 2011 to the Supervisory Council, prior to the
listing of the shares of the Company, the recommendation was not followed. The reason for
not following the recommendation was that the "Corporate Governance Recommendations”
are applicable to companies listed on the NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange.

As of listing of AS Pro Kapital Grupp shares on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn Stock Exchange the
Company intends to follow the recommendation and the auditor shall present an overview,
analysis and opinion described above in writing to the Supervisory Council.
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Management Declaration

The Management Board declares and confirms that according to their best knowledge, the year 2012
consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by European Union, present a correct and fair view of consolidated assets,
liabilities, financial situation and loss or profit of AS Pro Kapital Grupp and the undertakings involved
in the consolidation as a whole, and the management report gives a true and fair view of the
development and results of the business activities and financial status of AS Pro Kapital Grupp and
the undertakings involved in the consolidation as a whole and contains a description of the main risks
and doubts.

Paolo Michelozzi Chief Executive Officer 29 April 2013
Member of the Management Board

Allan Remmelkoor  Chief Operating Officer 29 April 2013
Member of the Management Board




AS Pro Kapital Grupp

Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Annual Report 2012

in thousands of euros Note 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and bank balances 8 707 8 637
Current receivables 9 3 198 2 865
Inventories 10 48 191 53 186
Total Current Assets 52 096 64 688
Non-Current Assets
Non-current receivables 164 152
Deferred tax assets 26 464 370
Property, plant and equipment 11 21161 21863
Investment property 12 26 089 26 111
Intangible assets 288 288
Total Non-Current Assets 48 166 48 784
TOTAL ASSETS 6 100 262 113 472
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Current debt 13 11 692 14 002
Customer advances 652 838
Current payables 14 1926 1791
Taxes liabilities 102 95
Short-term provisions 2035 1091
Total Current Liabilities 16 407 17 817
Non-Current Liabilities
Non-current debt 15 156 706 21 462
Non-current payables 33 0
Deferred tax liabilities 26 1858 1962
Long-term provisions 131 173
Total Non-Current Liabilities 17 728 23 597
Total Liabilities 6 34135 41 414
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Share capital in nominal value 19 10 637 10 637
Revaluation surplus 19 11 330 11 330
Foreign currency differences -1 064 -1 130
Retained earnings 49 624 21 504
Profit (loss) for the financial year -5 952 28120
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company 64 575 70 461
Non-controlling interests 20 1552 1597
Total equity 66 127 72 058
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 100 262 113 472

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Slgned for identification puxpdéés:

——AS Deloitte Audit Eomt
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

in thousands of euros Note 2012 2011
Continuing operations
Operating income
Revenue 6, 21 16 078 17 449
Cost of sales 22 -12 750 -16 407
Gross profit 3328 1042
Marketing expenses 23 -531 -362
Administration expenses 23 -5 889 -5 657
Other operating income 24 411 54 280
Other operating expenses 24 -1932 -1 455
Operating profit (loss) 6 -4 613 47 858
Finance income 25 48 4770
Finance cost 25 -1 465 -2 877
Profit (loss) before tax -6 030 49751
Income tax 26 164 351
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing operations -5 866 50 102
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 0 6 046
Profit for the year -5 866 56 148
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company -5 869 28120
Non-controlling interests 3 28 028
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 11 330
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations -83 -62
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax -83 11 268
Total comprehensive income for the year -5 949 67 416
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company -5 952 39 351
Non-controlling interests 3 28 065
Earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic (euros per share) 27 -0.11 0.53
Diluted (euros per share) 27 -0.11 0.53
From continuing operations
Basic (euros per share) 27 -0.11 0.41
Diluted (euros per share) 27 -0.11 0.41
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Signed for identification purposes: ‘

—AS Deloitte Audit Eesti
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

in thousands of euros Note 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit (loss) for the year -5 866 56 148
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets 13 819 580
Change in fair value of investment property 12 1025 332
Gain on disposal of tangible assets held for sale 0 -54 057
Net gain / loss on disposal of ownership in subsidiary 0 -2736
Net gain / loss from purchase of subsidiary 0 -137
Net gain / loss from discontinued operations 0 -6 589
Net gain/loss from disposal/write-off of non-current
assets 2 4
Write-down of inventories 62 3028
Finance income and costs from continuing operations 1 405 1339
Finance income and costs from discontinued
operations 0 244
Change in deferred tax assets and liabilities 26 -198 -376
Net foreign exchange gain / loss 83 -38
Other non-monetary changes (net amounts) -1 026 366
Movements in working capital:
Change in trade receivables and prepayments 9 -333 -15 854
Change in inventories 10 4 995 4797
Change in liabilities and prepayments 535 -5 243
Change in provisions 902 835
Net cash generated by operating activities 2 405 -17 357
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment -73 -1 322
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 9
Proceeds from disposal of tangible assets held for sale 0 104 997
Payments for investment property 12 -1 025 0
Proceeds from disposal of investment property 12 25 0
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries 7 -9 -22 825
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries 0 6 323
Net cash outflow on disposal and acquisition of
subsidiaries (discontinued operations) 0 -7 261
Repayment of loans granted 0 1
Interest received 28 7 641
Net cash {used in) / generated by investing activities -1 051 87 563
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue on convertible notes 18 0 3062
Proceeds from borrowings 566 3144
Repayment of borrowings -8 417 -70 578
Interest paid -1 433 -1 504
Investments made by non-controlling shareholders into
subsidiaries (net amount) 0 4
Net cash used in financing activities -9 284 -65 872
Net change in cash and cash equivalents -7 930 4 334
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8 8 637 4303
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 707 8 637

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated fina e e

Signed for identificatior: prIpc.e

2

= a2 . >
a ~AS Deloitte Audit £




!

RESE 3IPRY IO SV

‘SjuUaWale)s |eloueul) palep||losuod asay) Jo Jed |eibaju ue ase sajou Buluedwoosoe ay |

21 99 ess | S.iS ¥9 rAL R 4 90 |- oce L) 0 0 1€9 01 2102 1equedeq Lg
676 G- € 2G6 G- 698 G- €8 0 0 0 0 JeaA sy} 10} sso| saisusysidwo)
ab- 8- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 saue|pisqns Ut sebBueyo Jayjo pue sjsaisiul
Buyiosuoo-uou wouy sbuipjoy jo suoyisinboy
850 2L L6S | L9 0L 29 6V o€l 1- 0ce LI 0 0 189 0L LL0Z J9quiadeq Le
ol¥ 19 S90 8¢ 1G€ 6€ 0cl 8¢ 66- oee Lt 0 0 0 JeaA ay} Joj Jyoud aAisusyaidwo)
8G1 861 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 saniAnoe Bupesado Jo sfes
8yl 0} anp Isausjul Buyjjonuos-uou ui abueyn
2l9 8§- 6.¢ 96 - 209 109 0 0 0 0 0 Aeipisgns ul sjsalsiul
Buijjosnuos-uou woyy sBuipjoy Jo uonisinboy
¥ 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 saueIpIsqns u| [ejides aJeys JO 8sealou|
0 0 0 10€ 69 0 0 8¢e6 ¢- 680 G- VvicC Aunbe aanebsu
12- ay} JaAoo 0} [endeD aleys u| 9sea109(]
¢sL6l- 110 G- Wivi- 198 ¥4- ozl 0 0 0 0 Jebiswap Buunp psjeosojje sjesse 1oN
0 0 0 180 ¢ 0 0 0 0 180 ¢- dN3 o uoisiaAuoo eyded aseys
06 6€1 099 v¢ vve S01 c8e vT LS }- 0 8¢6 ¢ 680Str 266 £€ 110z Adenuep |
Ayinba sjsalajul juased sy) sBujuies EYSEELY EYVETTEY EYNETEY] w |endes s0.4ne jo spuesnoyj ur
leiol Bujjjonuoo JO sidumo pauleisy uone|sueu} uo Aioymeyg nwaid aueysg
-UON fynbs 0} ® Kouauno nenjeaal aleys
Iqeanquny ublesogy s
aluadoly

Z10Z Hodey [enuuy pejepijosuo)

Ay inb3 ul sabueys jo Jusweje}g pajepljosuo’)

ddnig [eyidey| oid SY



AS Pro Kapital Grupp Consolidated Annual Report 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. General Information

The consolidated financial statements of AS Pro Kapital Grupp (hereinafter the Parent) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter the Group or the Company) for the financial year ended 31 December 2012
were signed by the Management Board at 29 April 2013.

Pursuant to the Commercial Code of the Republic of Estonia, the annual report prepared by the
Management Board and approved by the Supervisory Board and which also includes the consolidated
financial statements shall be approved at the General Meeting of Shareholders. Shareholders have
the right not to approve the consolidated annual report prepared and presented by the Management
Board and require preparation of a new consolidated annual report.

AS Pro Kapital Grupp is a corporation incorporated in the Republic of Estonia and it operates in
Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania and Germany.

From 23 November 2012, the shares of AS Pro Kapital Grupp are listed on NASDAQ OMX Tallinn
Stock Exchange secondary list. As at 31 December 2012, the main shareholders of the Company are
the following:

Country of Share of ownership
Shareholder incorporation 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Clearstream Banking Luxembourg S.A Luxembourg 22.23% 0.00%
Svalbork Invest OU Estonia 12.86% 12.86%
Eurofiduciaria S.r.l. Italy 12.84% 11.98%
Sueno Latino AG Liechtenstein 8.51% 8.51%
A.F.l. American Financial Investments Ltd. Liechtenstein 8.20% 9.57%
Anndare Ltd. Ireland 6.27% 41.69%

The address of its registered office is disclosed in the introduction to the consolidated annual report.
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) are described in Note 5.

Note 2. Application of New and Revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs)

2.1 Amendments to IFRSs affecting amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements

The following amendments to IFRSs have been applied in the current year and have affected the
amounts reported in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRSs affecting presentation and disclosure only

The following amendments to the existing standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and adopted by the EU are effective for the current period:

e Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets,
adopted by the EU on 22 November 2011 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2011). The objective of the amendments is to improve the quality of the information
reported about financial assets that have been transferred” but are still, at least partially,
recognised by the entity because they do not qualify for derecognition, because they qualify
for derecognition, but with which the entity continues to have some involvement.

The adoption of the amendment to the existing standards has not led to any changes in the
Company’s accounting policies.

Signed for identification purposes:
=

~"AS Deloitte Audit Eestl
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2.2 Standards and Interpretations issued by IASB and adopted by the EU but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following standards, revisions and

interpretations adopted by the EU were in issue but not yet effective:

» IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, adopted by the EU on 11 December 2012 (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014),

« IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, adopted by the EU on 11 December 2012 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014),

« IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities, adopted by the EU on 11 December 2012
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014),

e |IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, adopted by the EU on 11 December 2012 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013), IFRS 13 defines fair value, provides
guidance on how to determine fair value and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. However, IFRS 13 does not change the requirements regarding which items
should be measured or disclosed at fair value.

» |AS 27 (revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements, adopted by the EU on 11 December
2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014),

o |AS 28 (revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, adopted by the EU on
11 December 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014),

» Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters, adopted by the EU on 11 December 2012 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013),

o« Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS — Government Loans, adopted by the EU on
4 March 2013 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013),

« Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, adopted by the EU on 13 December 2012 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013),

« Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and
IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities — Transition Guidance, adopted by the EU on
4 April 2013 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014),

« Amendments to IAS 1 Presentations of financial statements — Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive income, adopted by the EU on 5 June 2012 (effective for annual periods on or
after 1 July 2012). The amendments require companies preparing financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs to group together items within OCI that may be reclassified to the profit
or loss section of the income statement. The amendments also reaffirm existing requirements
that items in OCI and profit or loss should be presented as either a single statement or two
consecutive statements.

« Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets, adopted
by the EU on 11 December 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013). IAS 12 requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on
whether the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale. It can
be difficult and subjective to assess whether recovery will be through use or through sale when
the asset is measured using the fair value modei in IAS 40 Investment Property. The
amendment provides a practical solution to the problem by introducing a presumption that
recovery of the carrying amount will, normally be, be through sale.

« Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits — Improvements to the Accounting for Post-
employment Benefits, adopted by the EU on 5 June 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013),

« Amendments to |IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, adopted by the EU on 13 December 2012 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014),

« Amendments to various standards Improvemenis to IFRSs (2012) resulting from the annual
improvements project of IFRS published on 17 May 2012 (IFRS 1, IAS 1, IAS 16, IAS 32, IAS
34) primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording, adopted by the EU
on 27 March 2013 (amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013). The revisions clarify the required accounting recognition in cases where free
interpretation used to be permitted. The most important changes include new or revised
requirements regarding: (1) Repeated application of IFRS 1, (ii) Borrowing costs under IFRS 1,
(i) Clarification of the requirements for comparative information, (iv) Classification of servicing
equipment, (v) Tax effect of distribution to holders of equity instruments, (vi) Interim financial
reporting and segment information for total assets and liabilities.

e |FRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine, adopted by the EU on 11

December 2012 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lgiglal%%gg f’&éntiﬁcaﬁonp .
2 = Urposes
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The Company has elected not to adopt these standards, revisions and interpretations in advance of
their effective dates. The Company anticipates that the adoption of these standards, revisions and
interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period
of initial application.

2.3 Standards and Interpretations issued by IASB but not yet adopted by the EU

At present, IFRS as adopted by the EU do not significantly differ from regulations adopted by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) except from the following standards, amendments

to the existing standards and interpretations, which were not endorsed for use as at date of

publication of financial statements:

» IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015),

« Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures,

« Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in
Other Entities and |IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements — Investments Entities (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014).

The Company anticipates that the adoption of these standards, amendments to the existing standards
and interpretations will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the
period of initial application.

At the same time, hedge accounting regarding the portfolio of financial assets and liabilities, whose
principles have not been adopted by the EU, is still unregulated. According to the Company’s
estimates, application of hedge accounting for the portfolio of financial assets or liabilities pursuant to
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement would no significant impact the financial
statements, if applied as at the reporting period date.

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted in European Union, and in accordance with Estonian
Accounting Act.

3.2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain properties and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
3.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operational policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, income and expenses are eliminated in full on.consolidation

Signed foridentiﬁ/cgtionpwposes:
S

|
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Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. When assets of
the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the relevant assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under 1AS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

3.4 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at

their fair value, except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 and IAS 19 respectively;

» liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date: and

« assels (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acuiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or

liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is

measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a

business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as

measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with,.corresponding.adjusiments
P : : P Y ’%1gneﬁ8rf&nﬂﬁc fi
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against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with 1AS 39, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period
(see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognized at that date.

3.5 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see Note 3.4 above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergise of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit of loss disposal.

3.6 Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions, of the Central Banks of sub-group’s country of
incorporation. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date, of the Central Banks of sub-group’s country of
incorporation. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise except for:

« exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

« exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency

risks; and
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« exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor fikely occur (therefore forming part of the net investment
in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified form equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into euros using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period, of European Central Bank of the country of incorporation of the consolidating
company. Income and expense items are retranslated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals, the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities acquired arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.

The main foreign currencies and relevant exchange rates according to European Central Bank as
applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

in euros 31.12.2012 2012 average  31.12.2011 2011 average
Latvian lats (LVL) 1.43328 1.43410 1.42959 1.41583
Lithuanian litas (LTL) 0.28962 0.28962 0.28962 0.28962
3.7 Cash and cash flows

Cash on the statement of financial position and statement of cash flows comprises cash on hand,
bank accounts, and short-term bank deposits (with time term less than three months).

Cash flows from operating activities are presented using the indirect method, according to which the
net profit (loss) for the financial year is adjusted by the effect of transactions of a non-monetary
nature, net changes in assets and liabilities related to business operations, and items of income and
expense (profits and losses) associated with financing and investing activities. Cash flows from
investing and financing activities are reported based on direct method, presenting gross receipts and
disbursements of the accounting period.

3.8 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventory items that are
individually distinguishable an individual measurement of cost value and cost of sales is applied. For
inventory items that are not individually distinguishable, the weighted average cost method is used.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

3.9 Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings held for supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation

Signed for %on purposes:
Z D

i

E | _—AS Deloitte Audit Basti



AS Pro Kapital Grupp Consolidated Annual Report 2012

impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amounts do not differ materially from those that would be determined using fair values at the end of
each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease for the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognized in profit or loss to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued buildings is recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the properties
revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The annual depreciation rates for groups of property, plant and equipment are as follows:
« Buildings in use 2 to 5% per annum;

« Machinery and equipment 8 to 20% per annum);

o Other fixtures 20 to 50% per annum.

3.10 Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes).

Land and buildings, which are planned to be held for a longer period of time and which have different
possibilities to be used are reported also as investment property. In case of change in the usage
purpose of the investment property, the asset is reclassified and since the reclassification date the
accounting principles of the new group are applied.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss statement in the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn form use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.
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3.11 Intangible assets

Intangible assets include purchased franchises, patents, licenses, trademarks, usage rights and
goodwill.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation rate for intangible assets are 20% per annum,
excluded the usage rights and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. Usage rights are
amortised on a straight-line basis and the maximum length of the amortisation period is the period
where the asset is being used. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.12 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there are any indications that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease (see Note 3.9 above).

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase (see Note 3.9 above).
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3.13 Investments in subsidiaries (in Parent company’s unconsolidated financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries that are not held for sale are recognised in the unconsolidated financial
statements of the Parent company at cost.

3.14 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transactions costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets of financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.15 Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value
through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial
assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designed as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

s it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

» itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon

initial recognition if:

» such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or

» the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

« it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any__g,ams_nL_lg_ss_es_ausmg_nn_

remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or Iosbsfgﬁgg
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incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gain
and losses’ line item.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any impairment loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets (AFS financial assets)

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables; (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

AFS financial assets that are traded in an active market are stated at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Also AFS equity instruments that are not traded in an active market are stated at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, only if, the management considers that fair value can be
reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
changes in foreign currency rates (see below), interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognized in profit or loss. Other changes in
the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is classified to profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in
that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period. The
foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined based on the
amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables
when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. For all other financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:
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significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in-interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they were assessed not to be impaired individually. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 180 days, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When trade receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to
and event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirely, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in it's entirely (e.g. when the Group retains an option
to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the pre i
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continui
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no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

3.16 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Compound instruments

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument. The
Company is issued convertible bonds that are convertible into shares at bondholder's request. The
Company is classified those convertible bonds as financial liability.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an
amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are
included in the carrying amount of the liability, and amortised over the lives of the convertible notes
using the effective interest method. Interest expense from convertible bonds is recorded in the income
statement for the reporting period based on actual interest rates.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’. All
the Company'’s financial liabilities belong to the category ‘other financial liabilities'.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other current and non-current payables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost
of current financial liabilities normally equals their nominal value; therefore, current financial liabilities
are stated in the statement of financial position at their redemption value.

The effective interest method is method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums and discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Financial liabilities are classified as current when they are due to be settled no more than twelve
months after the reporting period; or the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Borrowings that are due
no more than twelve months after the reporting period, but which are refinanced after the reporting
period as non-current, are recognised as current ones. Also, borrowings are classified as current if the
lender had a contractual right at the reporting period to demand immediate repayment of the
borrowing due to the breach of conditions set forth in the agreement.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

3.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties

surrounding the obligation. Provision is discounted to its present value when the effect of the time
value of money is material.

3.18 Contingent liabilities

Pledges and other commitments, which at certain conditions may turn into liabilities in the future, are
disclosed in the Notes of the consolidated financial statements as contingent liabilities.

3.19 Statutory reserve
Statutory legal reserve of the Parent is recorded based on the requirements of the Estonian
Commercial Code and is comprised of the provisions made from the net profit. The annual provision

must be at least 1/20 of the approved net profit of the financial year until the statutory legal reserve
equals at least 1/10 of share capital amount.

3.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Net sales

Net sales of the Group consists of revenues from the sale of real estate based on the real right
agreements confirmed by the notary, rental income as well as revenues earned from management,
administration services and hotel management services.

Revenue from sales is recorded on the accrual basis, when significant risks have been transferred to
the buyer, and the sales income and costs incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured

reliably.

Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in Note 3.22 below.
Other income

Income, which is not related to the core operations of the Group entities, is recorded as other income.
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Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.21 Expenses

Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes the costs of bringing real estate objects realized during the reporting period and
recorded in the net sales to a marketable condition. Real estate rental, development and

management expenses, and costs related to hotel management services are also recorded in income
statement under “Cost of sales”.

Marketing expenses

Marketing expenses include selling expenses, i.e. advertising, agency fees and other marketing
expenses.

Administration expenses

Administrative expenses include personnel and office management expenses, research and
development expenses, and depreciation and amortization charges.

Other expenses

Expenses, which are not related to the core operations of the Group entities, are recorded as other
expenses.

Finance cost

Direct interest costs of acquiring properties constructed over long periods of time are capitalized until
the property is taken into use. Other interest and financing costs are recorded on the accrual basis as
financial expenses of the reporting period.

3.22 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as an assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
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benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

3.23 Taxation
Estonia

According to the Estonian Income Tax Act the accrued profit of a resident legal entity is not subject to
corporate income tax, instead the tax is due on the distribution of dividends. Income tax should be
calculated also on other payments made from equity that are exceeding the monetary or non-
monetary contributions made to the equity. The tax rate applicable is 21/79 from the taxable amount.

As a result of such taxation principles, the notion of “tax base of assets and liabilities” has lost its
economic meaning and deferred income tax and assets cannot be calculated in accordance with I1AS
12 “Income Taxes”. Contingent income tax liability from the retained earnings, which could otherwise
be distributed as dividends, is not recorded in the Statement of Financial Position. Income tax
expense to be incurred at the payment of dividends is recognized in the income statement as
expense at announcement of dividends or any other distribution of equity.

Other subsidiaries

Profit earned by subsidiaries of the Group is imposed to income tax according to the tax rate
stipulated by the legislation of domicile countries. Deferred income tax liability is accounted from all
relevant temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their book value.
Deferred income tax assets, which are mainly caused by the tax losses carried to future periods, are
recognized in the statement of financial position only, when it is likely that it will be realized through
the taxable profit earned in the future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right in the Group subsidiaries’ countries of incorporation to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities. For calculation of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities,
generally the income tax rate applicable on the balance sheet date is used.

3.24 Segment reporting

According to IFRS 8 Operating Segments, segment reporting is applicable to operating segments
whose results are regularly reviewed by the parent to make business-related decisions. The primary
decisions are made on country basis. Operating segments are components of the entity for which it is
possible to obtain discrete financial information to make decisions about resources to be aliocated to
the segment and assess its performance. Primary criteria for monitoring of operating segments are
the following: Revenue from third parties, EBIT, net profit earned and total assets.

3.25 Subsequent events

Consolidated financial statements include impact of significant events that are related with the events
of previous periods that affect the valuation of assets and liabilities and occurred between the end of

the reporting period and the date that the financial statements are finalized by the management board
GFiE Farent. Signed for idenﬁﬁca;ogpumoses: |
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Events after the reporting period that do not affect the valuation of assets and liabilities but have a
significant effect on the result of the following financial year, are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statement

3.26 Changes in presentation of information

In previous reporting periods, land and real estate taxes were recognised as other operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Due to the direct connection
between the land and real estate taxes and the Company’s business, these taxes are now recognised
in the administration expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The comparative information of the previous financial year that is presented in the consolidated
financial statements for 2012 has been changed to correspond to the new presentation. Thus, the
following items have been adjusted in the financial statements: in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, administration expenses have increased by 420 thousand euros; other
operating expenses have decreased by the same amount.

Note 4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the management
is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

4.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimation (see Note 4.2 below),
that the management have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of real estale

Decision of real estate classification to inventory, investment property or property, plant and
equipment is done based on management's intention over the future use of the object. Property is
recognized as inventory, if the objective of purchase is connected with development of environment, it
is sale or resale during ordinary course of business. Objects recognized as investment property if
purchase objective is gaining profit from rent or rise of market value. Also objects recognized as
investment property if it is intended to keep them for long time and which have several purposes of
use.

Property used for rendering services or for administrative purposes and with useful life of over one
year is considered to be property, plant and equipment.

Collection risk of receivables

For material financial assets, potential decrease in value is evaluated separately. Receivables
overdue for more than 180 days are considered to be non-collectible and are fully written off.

The Group may have overdue receivables that are not provided for. Such receivables are assessed
by the management of the Group on individual basis and found them to be collectable.

Signed for 1denuij?9;(gl purposes:
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4.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumption concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimation of net realisation value of invenlories

According to the Group principles, inventories are stated on the balance sheet at the lower of cost or
net realizable value, depending on which is lower. The management should decide upon net
realization value if indication occurs that inventory value might be fallen below cost price. In this is the
case inventories are written down to their net realization value.

Real estate that have been acquired and developed for sale is presented on the balance sheet as
inventories. In assigning value to such assets, management takes in account market sale transactions
of similar type of assets made close to the balance sheet date. Additionally for assigning the value
there were used professional valuations made by property specialists. If actual sale prices of real
estate objects were below the balance sheet value the assets were written down to their net
realization value. In assigning the value to property purchased for development purpose, the Group
has used professional valuation reports concluded by certified real estate appraisers.

Fair value of investment property

At the end of reporting period the property investments are valued at their fair value. In determination
of the fair value estimations of management were used, and if needed opinion of independent certified
real estate appraisers. In determination of the fair value two methods are used: discounted cash flow
method and comparative transaction price method. Discounted cash flow method is used for
assigning fair value of real estate objects with stable rental income.

Recoverable value of property, plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the management reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there are any indications that the assets may be impaired. In determining the
recoverable value of an asset, the impairment test is carried out during what the recoverable value is
identified. The recoverable value of the asset is the higher of the present value of the future cash
flows from the asset or the fair value of the asset less costs to sell.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

In determining useful life of property, plant and equipment, taken into account the Group business
conditions and volumes, previous experience in relevant field and future plans. According to
management estimation useful life for buildings is 20 to 50 years. Useful life for machinery and
equipment 5 to 12.5 years depending on the purpose of use and for other equipment 2 to 5 years.

Collection risk of receivables

For material financial assets, potential decrease in value is evaluated separately. Receivable overdue
for more than 180 days, are considered to be non-collectible and are fully written-off.

The Group may have overdue receivables that are not provided for. Such receivables are assessed
by the management of the Group on individual bases and found them to be collectable.

— AS Deloitte Audit Eesti




RISZ IIPNY snioje SV m

e

S

(HqwS snwsuno] eujwoq JawLioy)

Juswabeuew |910H %00'001 %00°001 Auewlon sBuipjoH Auewuag) [eudey oid NO Hqwo saolaleg Jusabeuely [910H Md
Juswdojorap ajejse [eay %0000,  %00°00L ejuojs3 ddnig |eydey oid SV sbuipjoH Aueuwuss |ejidey oid NO
uswdojeAap ajelse [esy  %00°00L %00°001 Auewsn ddnug) |eydey) oid Sy Haws Auewlsc) |eydey] oid

(VIS uawabeuep eujwoq JauLI0)

Juswabeuew jgjoH %00°004 %00°00L ElAleT 0Srd eineT |endey oid VIS S@0IAIRG Juswabeuep [810H
juawdojaaap alelsa [eay  %00°0Z %00°0. elAle BBy, Suao seqlosiuzpin ww_:mMm_m VIS Simjoid Bqupalges nwnsed] oweisnysN
juswdojaAap ajejsa [eay  %00'00L %00°00} elAjen OSrd eineT [endey oid VIS .BBLy, s1us0 seqiosiuzply sejnesed
juswdojanap aJejse [eay  %00°00L %00°001 EIAJET OSrd ene [eydey oid VIS [Bloy}saAu|
juswdofsAap ajelse [eay  %00°001L %00°001 BIAlET] OSrd eine jelde) old VIS Sus0 sauzbieaz equpaiges nwnged! owesnysn
JuswdojaAap ajejse [eay  %00°001 %00°001 BIAlET OSrd eine endey oid VIS lwnged] ajwejsnyaN euljjeL
JuswdojoAap aje}se [eay  %00'001 %00°001 BIAlET 0Srd eine jeydey oid VIS 3 BlesiaAlM
Juswdo|aAap ajejse [eay  %00°001 %00°001 BIAJET OSrd eine eydey oid VIS BIAIBT Md
JuswdojoAap ajejsa B8y %00°00L  %00°00L BIAjET ddnig eydey oid gV OSrd eneT [eydey oid
juswabeueLu aje)se [eay  %00°001 %00°00L elueny)]  gvn ajeis3 jeay sniujiA [eydey oid davn juswabeuepy euiwoq
Juswdojorap aje}sa [eay  %00°00L %00°001L eluenyin  gyn siejs3 [esy sniuliA [eyde) oid gvN 1S8AU| Md
Juswdojoasp ajejsa [eay  %00°00L %00°001 ejuenyyn ddnuig |eydey oid SY gvN Slelsg |eay sniufiA [epdey) oid

%00°001 (sv ewsebeuely eujwoq Jawioy)

Juawabeuew |910H %00°00L BlUO)ST Nse3 |eudey| oid SV NO Sa21A19S Juswabeuey [2)0H
JuswidojoAsp a)ejse [eay  %00'96 %00°96 eluoysg nse3 |eyde)| oid SV 1EBUIqUIOYB0N euuljje] SV
Juswabeuew ajelse [8Y  %00°00L  %00°00L ejuojsg jseg [endey) oid SV (esnpeH oid NO AIsnoireud) asnpieH oid SV
Juswidojansp ajejse jeay  %00°001 %00°00L ejuols3y Nsag |eydey| oid SY [eleAy ipuol sV
Juswdojanap ojejse B8y  %66'66 %6666 ejuoys3 Nse3 |ejdey oid SV efewsigl gV
Juswdojansp aje}se [eaY  %00°001 %00°00} ejuojsg nse3 [ejdey oid SV [BHEAY 8sUew|| NO
Juswdojarap 9je)sa eaY  %00°00L  %00°001L ejuojs3y ddnig |eydey oid SV jsa3 |eydey oid SV

Auedwoo
eled ‘saianoe Buipjoyd | 910N 998 Bluojsg | 9JON 998 ddnig) jeydey oi4 SY

Liogel'le zZiLozzi'ie
dnous) ay) Aq pjay Jamod
BuyoA pue jsasajul
diysiaumo jo uopiodoid

uonesado pue
uonesodiosu] siapjoyaieys fnug ay; jo awenN
Jo Anunoyn

Ayanoe [edioulig

dnous) uonepijosuoy ay} o} Buibuojeg sennuy ‘g 9JON

Z10Z Moday [enuuy pejepijosuod ddnuig [eydey oid SY



RISH PNV MI0[2J SY

€1 i v \zz € ! | un3 HAWo saolaleg Juswabeuepy 1910H Md
€1 Il 0 o c € un3 (psjepijosucd) BuipjoH Aueuwss [ejdey 0id NO
950 § 296 ¥ lr6- Gey 5z sz I TAE] Hqws Auew.ss) eydey| oid
112 191 05- Ll L 098 095 AT VIS Se0IAISS Juswabeuel [90H
LIS L 0S¥ | Zz ZL1 666 666 AT VIS SiMjold eqLpaiges nwinged] OWEISnyaN
8/l L 0ze L Zri ze9 178 9 178 9 IAT VIS .BBIY, S0 seqioajuzpll) Snesed
912 | Zig | 091 ey 002 00. AT VIS [Sj0U3saAy|
8.Y z6¢ 8- 0l 00Z | 002 | AT S1U20 sauzbleaz equpaiges nwnsedi ossma,_m_m
066 |- o0 e 0 0zy € 0zv € AT VIS Iwnsed| slwejsmjeN eulljeL
90¢ 6 8¥0 6 95z 0z 106 9 106 9 AT VIS 3Y ElesiaAl
] ¥ c- e Vel Vel AT VIS BIneT Md
€68 €1 561 21 v60 |- 1992 881 0l 88l 0L dn3 (peiepijosuod) OSrd elaje [eydey old
G e/l oL ez By1 gyl 117 gvn Juswabeueyy eujwoq
1882 1682 oy 0ES 61 £90 £2 €90 €2 117 avn 159U Jid
066 |- 29¢ |- gz 1S 9 5/€2 SIEZ uNn3 (pejeplosuod) gyn ejels3 [esy SNIUJA [eNdey| old
8 62l G- Sy | 0zs 0zs E! NO S90IASS JusUISBEUB [S10H
SlE6 ZEL 6 g1 0 Gve 21 Sve Zl TE] JEEUIqUIOSOW BUUNEL SV
oy 08y oy L2y L Iz 1z ¥Nn3 asnpleH oid SY
L¥9 9 Szr 9 czz- e voE ¥ € ¥ TRE] [epeAy| Ipuo] Sy
8ee Gl 1 920 121 889 § 0 £G8 59 298 59 N3 efewsie] Sy
166 2 825 ¢ c- 168 oz 982 ¥n3 |epeny| asuew|| NO
£10 601 62 011 0/Z | 129 € 186 L 186 L1 TRE] (pejepijosuoo) nsa3 |eyidey oid SV
LLOZZL'LE  ZL0Z 2L IE ZL TR ¥15

Je S]oSSyY JOoN e S)oSSYy JoN ._Nh.h..w Mmo_\u_hp_n_ 10&0 M: UBAY _..“.N—‘%mNOM—‘ . “_N.N_‘WWNONU_‘ - >0:0.==O aw_ﬁ_mnsw

spuesnoyj uy

‘Jusled 8y} Jo pajiolwop Aousind ay) ojul paUaAu0D / ul pajuasald ale sdnolb-gns o sainbiy pajepijosuos ay) pue ‘dnosb-gns
3y} jo ajolwop jo Aouaund auy) u pajuasald ase seiuedwod sdnoiB-gns sy} Jo sainby sy sealsym 'seiuedwod dnois) sy Jo saunbiy [eloueul ay) pajuasald ale mojeg

Z10Z Hodaey jenuuy pajepijosuo) ddnig fepdey oid SV



AS Pro Kapital Grupp Consolidated Annual Report 2012

Note 6. Segment Reporting

Group companies consolidated segment information derived from geographical intercompany
segment reporting is presented below.

Segment result, assets and liabilities are presented on line items associated directly with particular
segment and are sufficiently motivated.

The business activity of the Company is exercised in Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania and Germany.

in thousands of euros Estonia Latvia  Lithuania Germany Total
2012

Revenue 3661 2 650 6 546 3221 16 078
Other operating income 213 41 19 138 41
Segment operating profit (loss) -4 375 -999 786 -25 -4 613
Financial income and expense (net) -544 177 -568 -128 -1417
Profit (loss) before income tax -4 919 -1 176 218 -163 -6 030
Income tax 0 91 10 63 164
Non-controlling interest 7 -10 0 0 -3

Net profit (loss) for the financial
year attributable to equity holders

of the parent -4 912 -1 095 228 -90 -5 869
31.12.2012

Assets 51085 25926 14 427 8824 100 262
Liabilities 21621 5772 5526 1216 34 135
Acquisition of non-current assets 54 12 3 4 73
Depreciation and amortisation -161 -255 -29 -374 -819
2011

Revenue 10 569 3038 3406 436 17 449
Other operating income 54 087 146 0 47 54 280
Segment operating profit (loss) 51 501 -3916 -57 330 47 858
Financial income and expense (net) -213 2 626 -520 0 1893
Profit (loss) before income tax 49 751
Income tax 0 -330 -24 3 -361
Non-controlling interest 28171

Net profit (loss) for the financial
year attributable to equity holders

of the parent 21931
31.12.2011

Assets 59 413 26 544 18 403 9112 113 472
Liabilities 25919 6 047 8 050 1398 41 414
Acquisition of non-current assets 354 17 1 0 372
Depreciation and amortisation -194 -2568 -19 -109 -580

In the first quarter of 2012, bulk sale of 27 apartments and 13 parking lots in Vilnius to UAB
Colosseum Real Estate Vilnius, which is also related party to the Company, took place. The value of
the sale was 4 535 thousand euros (see also Note 28).

" AS Deloitte Audit Eesti
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Note 7. Acquisitions of / Change in Ownership in Subsidiary

in thousands of euros AS Taismaja
Net assets at the date of acquisition 115 371
Share (%) as at 31 December 2011 99.99176%
Acquired 0.00784%
Share (%) as at 31 December 2012 99.9996%
Non-controlling interests 9
Acquisition cost 9
Paid in cash 9
Net cash outflow in acquisition 9
Profit in acquisition (equity) 0

Note 8. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents recorded in the statement of financial position and statement of cash
flows, comprise cash at hand and bank deposits as of the end of each reporting period. Foreign
currency accounts have been retranslated into euro at the European Central Bank currency exchange

rates prevailing on the reporting period date.

in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Cash at hand 48 63
Bank accounts 659 8 574
Total 707 8 637
Note 9. Current Receivables
in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Trade receivables 1068 669
Receivables from related parties (Note 28) 492 516
Other receivables 1400 1358
Accrued income 37 55
Prepaid expenses 200 267
Total 3198 2 865

In 2012, 186 thousand euros of trade receivables were written off (2011: 351 thousand euros). No
allowances for credit losses were made as at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, there were 294 thousand euros of current receivables overdue (31.12.2011:
321 thousand euros), of which 21 thousand euros were overdue by more than 360 days (31.12.2011:

131 thousand euros).

Note 10. Inventories

in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Property held for resale 12 908 17 947
WIP (property under construction) 35184 35107
Goods bought for resale 99 132
Total 48 191 53 186

AS Deloitic Audit Eest
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The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continuing operations
was 5 527 thousand euros (2011: 6 817 thousand euros).

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes 62 thousands euros (2011: 3 028
thousands euros) in respect of write-downs of inventory to net realisable value.

Inventories of 35 308 thousands euros (31 December 2011: 35 107 thousands euros) are expected to
be recovered after more than twelve month.

Note 11. Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 December 2012 Group’s land and buildings were revalued into their fair value based on the
valuation of independent expert. The valuation, which confirms to International Valuation Standards,
was performed by independent real estate appraiser Newsec Valuation and was determined by using
market transactions method and partially with reference to discounted cash flow method.

The valuation results do not significantly exceed book values of land and buildings as of 31.December
2012 and upon management judgement book values reflect fairly the vaiue of Group’s land and
building assets and no additional revaluation adjustment is deemed necessary.

Based on independent appraiser's valuation, following fair value adjustments were performed as of
31 December 2011 (in thousands of euros):

Carrying amount Revaluation value
in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Pulkvieza Brieza 11, Riga 1767 1795 5 880 6 070
Pdhja Avenue 21, 21a, 21b-1, Tallinn 3517 3602 5975 6 100
P6hja Avenue 21c, Tallinn 192 108 268 268
Kurhausstrasse 28, Bad Kreuznach 2 430 3793 8 063 8 280

Revaluation reserve (accounted for under equity) in the amount of 11 330 thousands euros was
formed to account for revaluation differences (see Note 19) There are no restrictions on distribution on
revaluation reserve.

in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Land and buildings 20 449 21069
Machinery and equipment 403 548
Other property, plant and equipment 279 246
Total 21 161 21863

o]
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Note 12. Investment Property

Investment Investment
property held for property held for
in thousands of euros increase in value earning rentals Total
Balance at 1 January 2011 26 023 88 26 111
Additions:

Acquired 332 0 332
Changes in fair value:

Loss from change in fair value of IP -332 0 -332
Balance at 31 December 2011 26 023 88 26 111
Additions:

Acquired 1025 0 1025
Disposals:

Written off -22 0 -22
Changes in fair value:

Loss from change in fair value of IP -1 025 0 -1 025
Balance at 31 December 2012 26 001 88 26 089

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 has
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by Newsec Valuations
EE, independent valuers not related to the Group. Newsec Valuations EE is members of the Institute
of Valuers of a Land, and they have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of properties in the relevant locations. The valuation arrived at by reference to recent market
transactions and arms’ length method. in few appropriate instances discounted cash flow method was
used due to low number of comparable market transactions.

As at 31 December 2012 the appraiser determined no significant changes in the value of investment
properties, consequently, the management of the Group decided to state the value of investment
properties unchanged since 31 December 2012.

Fair value adjustment of 1 025 thousand euros comes from capitalized cost that were expensed at the
year end as the fair value of investment property remained constant.

The rental income and the corresponding direct expenses from the described investment property
were the following:

in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Rental income 35 6
Direct operating costs

Maintenance 0 44
Other direct costs 72 0

Information about investment property pledged as collaterals is disclosed in Note 17 to these
consolidated financial statements.

Sigq?d for iden%on purposes:
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Note 13. Current Debt
in thousands of euros 31.12.2012  31.12.2011
Bank loans and overdrafts (Note 16) 4237 4 402
Convertible notes (Note 18) 3 261 0
Payables to related parties (Note 28) 4153 9520
Other 41 80
Total 11 692 14 002

Note 14. Current Payables
in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Trade payables 1031 724
Payables to related parties (Note 28) 1 0
Accrued expenses 894 1063
Deferred income 0 4
Total 1926 1791

Note 15. Non-Current Debt
in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Bank loans and overdrafts (Note 16) 7 695 10190
Convertible notes (Note 18) 8 011 11272
Total 15706 21 462

Signed for identification purposes:

—-AS Deloitte Audit Eesti




NSOH 1PNy anjofeq Sy

0 0 (113 oL 4
sjesse  ¢10¢'60°0¢ %L°S 0 0 ol (018 €ec an3 ydeuznaly peg HQWo snwsunoj euiuoq
s Aigu3 yueqgsy|oA
:sbuipjoH Aueuwuas |ejdey) oid
0 9¢L ¢ 000 } 9€L ¥ 002 2
LL ®1ION +102°Z1°20 HOLIMNT Yuow 9 + %H'Z 0 9cl ¢ 000 | 9el v 00¢ 2 dn3 queqpams gy gV 1S8AU] Hd
SNIUJIA [eydey oud
0 656 € 474 v8e v (AR
ZL ®10N SL02°'S0'L0 HO9IHN3 Yuow ¢ + %0'c 0 656 € S TAN 14:14 4 €c9v dan3 jueqpamg Sy YIS [e10isaAuy|
‘Blaje] jeydey] oug
0 0 2062 206 ¢ ovLZ
Ll ®10N €102'80'60 JOLIYNT Yuow 9 +%G56°| 996G 995 0 dn3 qUBqpamg Sy sa3 [endey oid SY
LLOION €102°20'91 HOdIdNT Puow 9 + %Gz 0 0 <G09 S09 S09 dn3 jueqpamg Sy |EWBAY Ipuo] SV
L1 SION €102°LL'L0 HOgIdNTg Wuow 9 + %02 0 0 el L LEL L 34 %4 dn3 jueqpamg Sy nse] (eydey oid SV

:psag |eydey| oud
slesk G JOAQ sJeeh g-Z Jeak | ulyIpm
[eJdjejjon  Iep djel Jsa8}U| sjuewdedal ueor ZLOZZL LS e 1L10Z°ZL'LEYe Aoduaind 10}Ipain Jomouiog
Aumew dduejeq ueo saueeq ueo| }JOeHRUOY

so.ne o spuesnoy} uj

SYeIPISAQ pue sueo jueg gl SjoN

Z10Z poday [enuuy pajepijosuon ddnug jendey oud sy



695 vl elol
ddnug |eudey| oid sy 19)19| 99)ue.IeNK)
X sjasse s_Ajjug
006 LL (saloauy) gavn 1seAu| Md SNIUIA ‘01 41S nuonBy 9Ly UEQPIMS 8V avn 1SoAU| Md
uoaNJISUOD paysiul
X sjosse s Ajjug ddnig) jeydey oid SV Jaye| svuelEns)
(sauojuanaul)
698 8 uooNLSUoD
pausIuUN VIS TN BlesIon) ebly ‘g Jeexs seqipelli] viey AUBGPSMS SV VIS IBjowseAul
008 ¥ sjesse Byl VIS [BI0YisoAu|
626 S sbulp|ing pue pue VIS [9loyiseau| by ‘|| "5iS ezeug ezeAyind
182 1 Loronisies oty [BEA PUOL SY uulie] LG 1984 IPUO L
{sauojuaAul) .
194 UOIONSUOD paysiul [eHeAy asuew|| NO  uuljje] €T ‘LZ anuaae efyod
uule nse
Gl6G sbuip|ing pue pue  ysa3 |eydey oid SY ‘1-q1Z 81z ‘12 ‘anuaAe m_ho“_. 099G jueqgpsmg Sy [ende] oid ww
(sauojuaaur) .
192 UONONLSUOD paysSiUl [epeAy ssuew|| NO  uuleL €T ‘L.z enuaie efyod JUBaPOMS Sy nseg
G16 S sBuip|ing pue pue §sa3 [eudey oid S uuiiie 1 est fende 0id sv
T ' ] ‘1-q1. ‘BlLZ ‘Lz "onuaAe elyod
X sjesse s Aiug ddnio) [eudey oild SV Jo)8| 9sjueleND)
182°} Logon ﬁhww__%h“wﬁ_“_v [ELIEAY| IPUO] SY uuleL ‘LG 98uS Ipuoy =0 SAPSRS S SRS ESL S
ZL0ZZL'LE sjosse Jo adA | [e133e]|092 JO JaumQ uonduosap [eiaje|j0) FAN YA Aiepyouaq obpaid
e [eiajejj0d je uopehi|qo oy} jo aweN 2y} Jo swepN

Jo anjea yoog

Z10Z Hoday [enuuy pajepijosuo)

s0.na Jo spuesnoL] uj
:salpadould Bumolios ayy yim pebpald si sjusLwiale)s [BIOUBUL PYepI|OSUOD 8say) 0} 9L 810N Ul pasoasIp 19eQ

sjessy pabpajd pue s|eiaje|joy /L 8joN

ddnig [eydey) oid Sy



AS Pro Kapital Grupp Consolidated Annual Report 2012

In addition to guarantee letters related to loans of the Group, AS Pro Kapital Grupp has issued
guarantee letters as follows:

= To Hotel Blijdorp B.V. to assure the rental liabilities to Serval S.r.I. related to the hotel, located
in Rotterdam, rental agreement concluded between Serval S.r.l. and Hotel Blijdorp B.V. The
guarantee letter is only to assure the rental payments in amount up to 2 300 thousand euros
as at 31 December 2012. As at 12 March 2013 settlement between Aprisco B.V and Pro
Kapital Grupp has taken plaCe and the guarantee has been deemed not valid by the
settlement agreement.

=  To Swedbank AS (Latvia) to assure the potential liability of Kliversala RE SIA, an entity
belonging to Pro Kapital Latvia subsidiary group, in the amount of 8 002 thousand euros (5
681 thousand Latvian lats), as AS Swedbank (Latvia) has issued a guarantee letter in the
same amount to VAS ,Privatizacijas agentira’ to assure the investment liabilities related to
contract concluded between Kliversala RE SIA and VAS ,Privatizacijas agentlra”
(31.12.2012). As at 31 December 2012 the unfulfilled investment obligation of Kliversala RE
SIA was 7 382 thousand euros (5 188 thousand Latvian lats).

= To Swedbank AS (Latvia) in the amount of 4 314 thousand euros.

s Guarantee letter to Kristine Keskus OU to secure (jointly with Pro Kapital Eesti AS) possible
claims against Taismaja AS arising from a loan contract concluded between AS Pro Kapital
Eesti and Taismaja AS on 9 March 2004. The guarantee letter is limited to the maximum
amount of potential claim. The guarantee is effective for 72 months from concluding the sales-
purchase agreement, i.e. until 2 May 2017.

=  To AS Swedbank (Estonia) to assure loan liabilities of AS Tondi Kvartal, which amounted to
605 thousand euros as at 31 December 2012 (31.12.2011: 605 thousand euros).

= To Swedbank AB (Lithuania) to assure loan liabilities of UAB PK Invest in the amount of 4
736 thousand euros.

Note 18. Convertible Notes

in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Current debt (Note 13) 3 261 0
Non-current debt (Note 15) 8 011 11 272
Total 11 272 11 272

On 3 April 2009, AS Pro Kapital Grupp shareholders’ extraordinary meeting decided to issue up to
10 000 000 convertible notes of the Parent in nominal value of 0.6 euro per convertible note, and
increase conditionally the Parent's share capital by up to 10 000 000 shares in nominal value of 0.6
euro per share in order to exchange convertible notes for shares of the Parent. Management of the
Parent had the right to offer the above mentioned number of convertible notes under several
subscription periods. The offers of notes were carried out so that offers were neither jointly nor
separately deemed as public offering of securities under the terms of the directive 2003/71/EC and
applicable laws. The issue price of convertible note in each separate subscription period was
determined by management of the Parent not to be less than 4.0 euro per convertible note.
Convertible notes were offered for subscription in the quantity that was limited to the minimum total
sum payable based on the issue price 50 thousand euros. The interest rate of convertible note was
7% per annum from its issuance price. On 24 April 2009 the conditional increase of the Parent’s share
capital was registered in the Commercial Register.

In accordance with the decision of extraordinary meeting of shareholders of AS Pro Kapital Grupp on
13 April 2009, the Parent's management offered for subscription 1 500 000 convertible notes on 27
April 2010 (third subscription period), 900 000 convertible notes on 9 July 2010 (fourth subscription
period), 700 000 convertible notes on 15 September 2010 (fifth subscription period) and 600 000
convertible notes on 3 December 2010 (sixth subscription period), with an issue price of 4.5 euro per
convertible bond.

In the third subscription period 840 184 convertible notes were subscribed, for which the Parent
received 3 781 thousand euros in the reporting period. On 10 August 2010, the issued convertible
notes were registered in the Estonian Central Register of Securities.

it :
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In the fourth subscription period 536 012 convertible notes were subscribed, for which the Parent
received 2 412 thousand euros in the reporting period. On 16 September 2010, the issued convertible
notes were registered in the Estonian Central Register of Securities.

in the fifth subscription period 422 067 convertible notes were subscribed, for which the Parent
received 1 899 thousand euros in the reporting period. On 29 November 2010, the issued convertible
notes were registered in the Estonian Central Register of Securities.

In the sixth subscription period 569 273 convertible notes were subscribed, for which the Parent
received 2 562 thousand euros at the beginning of 2011. On 8 March 2011, the issued convertible
notes were registered in the Estonian Central Register of Securities.

The issuance of convertible notes of AS Pro Kapital Grupp in 1999 was redeemed in accordance with
the terms of issue, for the issue price, on 20 January 2010. Redemption fees were paid to the owners
in cash because the owners did not exercise the right to exchange the convertible notes for the
Parent share 1:1.

According to the terms of the emission convertible notes of AS Pro Kapital Grupp issued during the
period 2009-2010 can be converted to shares of the Parent untii 31 December 2012 with the
exchange rate one convertible note per share.

On 6 February 2013, AS Pro Kapital Grupp shareholders’ general meeting decided to offer the
possibility to the holders of convertible notes to prolong their convertible note redemption/conversion

deadline by two more years. The possibility is optional and is not binding.

Registration date  13.08.2009 20.01.2010 10.08.2010 16.08.2010 29.11.2010 25.05.2011
of notes issued

Issuance currency EUR _EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
Issue price of note 280EUR 280EUR 280EUR 280EUR 280EUR 2.80EUR
Note return per 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7%
annum (% from

issue price

Note interest Twice a Twice a Twice a Twice a Twice a Twice a
payment frequency year year year year year year

Latest date for the  13.08.2013 20.01.2014 10.08.2014 16.08.2014 29.11.2014 25.05.2015
repurchase of

notes
Latest date for the =~ 31.12.2012 31.12.2012 31.12.2012 31.12.2012 31.12.2012 31.12.2012

exchange of notes

to shares
Discount rate (%) 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7%
(Pcs.) 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Number of convertible notes at the beginning of period 4025 758 3 345 374
Number of convertible notes issued 0 680 384
Number of repurchased notes 0 0
Number of convertible notes at the end of period 4025758 4 025 758
in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Value of convertible notes at the beginning of period 11272 9 366
Principal of convertible notes issued 0 1906
Principal of convertible notes transferred through separation 0 0
Repurchased notes in repurchase price 0 0
Principal of the notes issued at the end of the period 11 272 11 272
Current portion of liabilities at the end of the reporting 3 261 -
period
Non-current portion of liabilities at the end of the reporting 8 011 11 272
_period
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Note 19. Share Capital and Reserves

Share capital

Owners of AS Pro Kapital Grupp ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends, in case these
are announced, and to participate in voting at general shareholders’ meetings of the entity with one
vote per share. The Entity has not issued any preference shares.

As of 31 December 2012, the share capital in the amount of 10 637 thousand euros (2011: 10 637
thousand euros) consists of 53 185 422 (2011: 53 185 422) ordinary shares at a nominal value of 0.2
euros (2011: 0.2 euros) per share. All shares have been paid for in full.

According to the articles of association effective on 31 December 2012, the minimum share capital
amounts to 6 000 thousands euros, whereas maximum share capital amounts to 24 000 thousands
euros.

Due to euro introduction in Republic of Estonia on 01 January 2011 and the requirements of the
Commercial Code, the nominal value of a share must be rounded to one decimal. Therefore, on 30
June 2011 the shareholders meeting decided to decrease the share capital by reduction of the
nominal value of shares. The decrease in share capital down to 31 911 thousands euros (563 185 422
shares at 0.6 euros per share) was registered in Commercial Registry on 8 August 2011.

On 16 September 2011, shareholders resolved further to decrease the share capital by 21274
thousand euros down to 10 637 thousand euros by decreasing the nominal value of a share from 0.6
euros to 0.2 euros. As a part of this change, share premium in the amount of 45 089 thousand euros
and accumulated statutory legal reserve in the amount of 2 938 thousand euros was released to
retained earnings.

On 6 February 2013 the general meeting of Group’s shareholders allowed to increase share capital of
the Company by up to 5.32 million euros within next 3 years.

On 4 April 2013 the general meeting of Group's shareholders decided on the increase of share capital
by 288 thousands euros, by emitting 1.4 million pieces of new shares with the nominal value of 0.2
euros, to be offered at 1.8 euro value.

As described in Note 18 to these consolidated financial statements, AS Pro Kapital Grupp has issued
convertible notes. The owners of the convertible notes have not exercised their option to convert the
notes into shares of the Group.

Reserves

Statutory legal reserve of the Parent is recorded based on the requirements of the Estonian
Commercial Code § 336 and is comprised of the provisions made from the net profit. The statutory
legal reserve as of 31 December 2012 amounted nil (no profit earned in 2012), it has been released
against retained earnings based on the shareholders resolution of 16 September 2011.

Revaluation surplus in the amount of 11 330 thousand euros results from adoption revaluation model
to property, plant and equipment (specifically land and buildings) under IAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment” in 2011. In accordance with IAS 8.17, revaluation model is implemented prospectively
and revaluation surplus is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Note 20. Non-Controlling Interest

in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Arising from Pro Kapital Estonia sub-group 933 949
Arising from Pro Kapital Latvia sub -group 619 648
Total 1552 1 597
Signed for y purposes:
_AS Deloitte Audit Eesti
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Note 21. Revenue
in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Revenue from sale of real estate 7 347 7 490
Rental revenue 1021 4138
Hotel operating revenue 6 336 4719
Other services 1374 1102
Total 16 078 17 449

Note 22. Cost of Sales
in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Cost of real estate sold 6 059 9 685
Cost of providing rental services 858 1928
Cost of hotel operations 3 568 4333
Cost of other services 2 265 461
Total 12750 16 407
in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Personnel expenses 1329 736
Depreciation charge 739 510
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 66 1
Inventory write-offs (Note 10) 62 3028
Other 10932 12132
Total 12750 16 407

Note 23. Marketing and Administration Expenses

Marketing expenses

in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Personnel expenses 106 38
Other 425 314
Total 531 352
Administration expenses

in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Personnel expenses 2354 2 399
Depreciation charge 433 62
Amortisation charge 8 7
Gain on bargain purchase 0 -137
Land/real estate taxes (Note 1) 486 420
Other 2608 2 906
Total 5889 5 657

In 2012, average number of employees was 131 (2011: 118) and total remuneration cost incurred
during 2012 was 1.97 million euros compared to 2.23 million euros in 2011 (included one-time
premiums in amounts of 0.56 million euros for successful sale of Kristiine Shopping Centre).

Signed M%ﬁm purposes:
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Note 24. Other Income and Other Expenses

Other income

Consolidated Annual Report 2012

in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Fines collected 23 21
Gain from sales of property, plant and
equipment 0 4
Gain from sales of non-current assets

classified as held for sale 0 54057
Release of allowance for bad debt 212 7
Other 176 191
Total 411 54 280
Other expenses
in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Fines paid 27 18
Loss from sales of property, plant and
equipment 0
Loss from sales of intangible assets 0
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 1 0
Fair value measurement of investment
property 1025 332
Provisions recognised 841 700
Allowance for bad debt 0 349
Other 35 56
Total 1932 1455

For 2012, the Group reported 1 025 thousand euros fair value adjustment on investment property,
which amounts to additions to investment property made in 2012 and then adjusted to expenses in
order to maintain fair value of investment property stated in the valuation reports (see Note 12).

Note 25. Finance Income and Cost

Finance income

in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Interest income 28 1514
Income arising from transactions with
participations in subsidiaries 0 2736
Gain from foreign currency translation 1 520
Other 19 0
Total 48 4770
Finance cost
in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Interest expenses 1433 2853
Interest expense of convertible notes (Note
18) 792 1174
Interest expense of loans and overdrafts 641 1433
Interest expenses initially capitalized PP&E 0 246
Loss from foreign currency translation 15 0
Other 17 24
Total 1465 2 877

Signed for identificatiop purposes:

P
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Note 26. Income Tax

Consolidated Annual Report 2012

According to the Estonian income Tax Act, the accrued profit of a resident legal entity is not subject to
corporate income tax; instead the tax is due on the distribution of dividends. Due to the difference in
the income tax concept, the term “taxation base of assets and liabilities” has no economic meaning,
and therefore deferred income tax liabilities and assets cannot be accounted for in accordance with

IAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

Statutory corporate income

tax (on earnings) rates 2012 2011
Estonia 21% 21%
Latvia 16% 15%
Lithuania 16% 15%
Germany 15% 15%
Income tax expense as at 31 December 2012
in thousands of euros Estonia Latvia Lithuania Germany Total
Profit (loss) before taxation -4 919 -1 176 218 -153 -6 030
(unconsolidated)
Income tax, statutory rate 0 14 37 0 51
Non-deductible expenses 0 57 10 1] 67
Non-taxable income and tax 0 -82 -4 0 -86
incentive
Tax loss utilized 0 -95 -38 -63 -196
Total income tax expense 0 91 10 63 164
in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Profit (loss) before income tax (consolidated) -6 030 49 751
Estimated income tax respective to the tax rates -86 129
Adjustments to estimated income tax:
Non-deductible expenses (+) 81 152
Non-taxable income and tax incentive 67 -024
Tax loss utilised 69 -20
Reversal loss carry forward (+) 35 686
Income tax expense 32 23
Effective tax rate 0.5% 0.05%
Deferred income tax expense (details as follows) 0 0
Deferred income tax returns (details as follows) -196 -374
Effect on income statement =164 -351
Income tax paid 0 0
Deferred income tax asset and liability (net) movements:
Accelerated Revaluation Deferred
tax of fixed tax
in thousands of euros depreciation assets  losses Total
31 December 2011 126 1836 -370 1592
Effect on income statement: 32 0 -196 -164
Income tax expense of the reporting period 32 0 0 32
Income tax reclaims of the reporting period 0 0 -196 -196
Impact on equity 0 -34 0 -34
31 December 2012 158 npegpbhses

A8 Deloitte Audit Eesti
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Deferred income tax balances

in thousands of euros ~31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Deferred income tax liability (+) 1858 1962
Deferred income tax assets (-) -464 -370
Total 1394 1592

Contingent corporate income tax

The Group’s retained earnings and maximum possible amount of corporate income tax (CIT)
obligation were as foliows:

in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Group's retained earnings 43 672 49 624
Statutory tax rate applicable 21% 21%
Contingent CIT obligation 9171 10 421

The calculation of maximum possible income tax liability is based on the assumption that the sum of
distributable net dividends and the income tax expense which occurs on distribution of dividends
cannot exceed total retained earnings as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

The Parent has potential opportunity (in case of retained earnings) to pay dividends that are not
taxable with income tax in amount of 44 647 thousand euros because the Parent has received
dividends from its subsidiary Pro Kapital Latvia PJSC, which is the resident and taxable person in the
Republic of Latvia. The maximum related possible income tax free amount that could be considered
as contingent asset and could be paid as net dividends is 11 868 thousand euros (31 December
2011: 11 868 thousand euros).

Note 27. Earnings per Share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) for the period with the weighted
average number of shares in the period:

In period 01.01.2012 - 31.12.2012 (53 185 422 x 12/12) = 53 185 422
In period 01.01.2011 - 31.12.2011 (53 185 422 x 12/12) = 53 185 422

Indicative net profit/loss per share in euros attributable to the owners of the Company:

2012 (5 868 604) 53 185 422 =-0.11
2011 28 120 154 /53 185 422 = 0.53

The convertible notes issued did not have a dilutive effect on earnings in 2012 and 2011, and
therefore they have not been included in the calculation of the diluted net profit / loss per share and
the diluted profit / loss per share equals the net profit / loss per share indicator.

Note 28. Transactions and Balances with Related Parties

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this Note. Details of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.

Transactions with related parties are considered to be transactions with the higher level of Parent

within the Group, shareholders, the members of the Supervisory Council and the Management Board
(defined as "key management”), their intermediate families and the companies in which they hold

control or have significant influence.
Signed for identiﬁcaﬁgn purposes: '
i,
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in thousands of euros 2012 2011
Owners holding significant influence
Interest income 16 148
Received interest (-) 0 -764
Issued loans 475 477
Repaid loans issued (-) 0 -5 222
Granted claims 19 927 23412
Acquisition of shares 0 42 811
Interest expense 163 945
Paid interest (-) 0 -764
Issued convertible bonds 0 3062
Members of the Management Board and Council
Salaries 851 1155
Other related parties
Goods and services sold 4703 5
Disposal of real estate 4 640 2615

There were no transactions other than remuneration paid to members of Management Board and
Supervisory Council in 2012. Transactions with related parties specified were carried out with the

Company'’s shareholders.

Receivables from related parties

in thousands of euros

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Significant owners and owner related companies
Current receivables from related parties

492 516

Total

Payables to related parties

in thousands of euros

492 516

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Significant owners and owner related companies
Convertible notes (including interests)

Payables to related parties

11272 9 265
4153 9520

Total

Holdings in the Parent

in thousands of euros

15 425 18 785

31.12.201231.12.2011

Significant owners and owner related companies

8.36% 8.61%

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given

or received.

No expense has been recognized in the current or prior periods for bad or doubtful debts in respect of
the amounts owed by related parties. The Group has provided loans to related parties at rates
comparable to the average commercial rate of interest. The loans to related parties are not

collateralised.

Signed for identification purposes:.
ridenips

S
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Note 29. Risk Management

The business of the Group involves business risk and several financial risks: market risk (interest and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, it is aimed to minimize the negative impact of these risks to
the Group’'s financial results with the risk management. The main purpose of the risk management is
to assure the retention of Group’s equity and to carry Group activities as a going concern.

The Group does not have any held-to-maturity investments, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale financial assets. The Group does not have any derivatives either. All
financial liabilities of the Group belong to category ‘other financial liabilities at amortised cost'.

Business risk

The business risk of the Group depends on the development of the real estate markets in the Baltic
States and Germany.

The global financial crisis and the accompanying economic crisis in the recent years have been
affecting negatively development of the real estate as well as tourism sector. Although at the end of
2009 the global economy showed some signs of economic growth, the positive impact of the real
estate development sector is usually occurs with a delay.

Significant risk which would occur with the crisis, the decrease of the substantial purchasing capability
of the permanent residence, the increase of the interest rates for mortgage loans and other factors
which could decrease the demand for real estate and hotel services and have a negative impact to
the Group operating activities, decreasing the sales and rent income as well the gain from
development activities, property management services and operating hotels. Changes in financial
markets could reduce the Group’s business opportunities to involve foreign capital to finance business
and to refinance existing financial fiabilities.

Following instruments are exposed to market risk (in thousands euros) as at 31 December 2012:

Carrying amount Allocation by due dates
Within 1 year 2-5 years
Investment property 26 089 0 26 089
Property, plant and equipment 21161 0 21161
Inventories (assets held for sale) 48 191 3121 45070
Financial debt 27 357 11 692 15 665

In 2012, those items had no change in fair value and therefore no effect on income. Interest expense
on financial debt was 1 433 thousands euros.

The Group’'s Management believes it is not possible to reliably assess the effects of the ongoing
economic crisis, however the management believes that all necessary measurement have been
adopted to provide a sustainable development.

Interest risk

Main interest risk rises from long-term liabilities of the Group. In general the interest rates of loans
raised by the entities belonging to Group are fixed through Euribor plus a risk margin. Interest risk
appears from Euribor and the volatility of the average market interest rates which affect the Group's
interest expenses. Minimum amount of financial instruments is used to diversify the interest risk.
According to Group’s management estimate the expenses related to interest diversification (fixed
interest rate) are exceeding the possible losses from the change of interest rate. The estimate based
on the Group’s financing strategy in the short-term.

Signed_ for idenﬁgggi,on purposes:
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As at 31 December 2012, the breakdown of interest- bearing financial debt was as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Fixed rate liabilities 15 436 20 872
Variable rate liabilities (1-12 months) 4226 4 402
Variable rate liabilities(12+ months) 7 695 10 190

The management does not expect significant changes in base interest rates as those have shown
stability and interest rates remain low. Assuming 100 bp rises in EURIBOR, there would be no change
in position of liabilities and interest expense would increase by 117 thousand euros.

Currency risk

Entities belonging to the Group perform transactions in currency applicable in the resident country,
currency risk arises in case of exchange currency transactions, which are performed with currencies
not related to euro. To ground the currency risk, all the relevant contracts in the Group are signed in
Euro or in currencies related to euro. Thus the main currency risk is related with devaluation of
currencies related to euro, against which the Group is not protected.

Due to the fact that Group’s liabilities are predominantly in euro and majority of Group’s income
comes from euro based contracts, the Group’s management estimates the currency risk to be
insignificant.

Credit risk

The Credit risk expresses potential loss that occurs, when customers do not fulfill their contractual
obligations to the Group. For mitigating the credit risk the payment discipline of the customers is
consistently followed.

In general the sales of real estate are financed with clients’ prepayments. In case of sales of the real
estate under the instalment, the creditworthiness of each client is analysed separately. The ownership
of the sales object belongs to the Group entities until the client has settled all debt. it may sometimes
happen that the ownership is transferred to the buyer but a mortgage is set in favour of the Group
entity.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk expresses the potential risk that if the Group’s financial condition will change, the
Group's ability to settle its liabilities on time will degrade. The Group constantly monitors proportion of
current liabilities and current assets. As at 31 December 2012 the working capital of the Group’s is
positive and the current assets exceeded current liabilities by 3.2 times (as of 31.December 201" by
3.6 times).

Financial liabilities of the Group by due dates (in thousands of euros):

Repayment of liabilities Repayment of liabilities

31.12.2012 Within 1 year 2-5 years 31.12.2011 Within 1 year 2-5 years
Bank loans 11932 4237 7 695 14 592 4 402 10 190
Other loans 4153 4153 0 9 600 0 9 600
Convertible
notes 11 272 3 261 8011 11272 0 11272
Trade
payables 1105 1105 0 724 724 0
Other debt 1926 1926 0 2249 2249 0
Total 30 388 14 682 15 706 38 437 16 975 21 462

| __~AS Deloitts Audit Besti
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Fair value

Based on the estimates of the Group’s management, book value of the financial assets and liabilities
does not differ significantly from their fair value, due to accounting policies used in Group.

Fair value of interest bearing receivables and liabilities is not considered to be significantly different
from their book value, because the interest rates fixed by the contracts underlying the corresponding
receivables and liabilities do not significantly differ from the effective market interest rates.

Capital risk management

The purpose of capital risk management is to provide the Group’s sustainability and to ensure profit
for the shareholders through optimal structure of capital. The Group uses debt and equity instruments
for financing business activities and it monitors percentage of equity to total assets in designing its
financial structure and in assessment of risk.

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Equity to total assets 66.0% 63.5%
Debt to total assets 34.0% 31.3%
Long term debt level 17.7% 18.9%

Pro Kapital Group persues conservative financing policy, targeting for high ratio of equity in its
projects, as compared to the industry standards. Company's goal is to use external financing so as to
avoid interest and loan covenant related risk during low economic periods and to have sufficient
additional external financing capacity in case attractive business opportunities occur. The Company
seeks to maintain such long term debt levels that are in reasonable proportion to growth in operations
and which preserve Company's credit standing.

Long term financing is planned and obtained on project- by- project basis. Prior to application for
external finance company constructs budget for the project in question, performs sensitivity analysis.
When applying for external financing, company carefully considers the effect such additional financing
may have on its debt/equity ratio, gearing ratio and NPV of the project. Additional borrowing
conditions in face of loanffinancial covenants, as well as interest rate risks are taken into
consideration. If any special conditions are set in external financing agreement (rental income, ratio of
rented/vacant space, etc.), the company seeks to meet them yet before the agreement is signed.
Generally, the Group’s policy is to finance its assets and operating requirements in the currency of the
country/currency zone concerned, in order to create a natural hedge and avoid any currency risk.

Long term partners are preferred for external financing, given their offers are most favourable for the
company. Long term loans are to be approved by the Company’s council prior to the assumption of
loan obligations. Short term overdrafts may be used to smooth out the seasonality of company’s
business and to maintain cash balances that are adequate for operating levels. Short term financing
partners are usually those through whom everyday banking operations of the company are carried
out.

Estonian Commercial Code §301 establish a restriction to the level of mandatory equity level: total
equity shall not be less than ¥ of registered share capital. Under the Estonian Accounting Act such a
compliance assessment is made based on the adjusted unconsolidated equity of the Parent. The
adjusted unconsolidated equity equals unconsolidated equity of the parent less book values of
investments into subsidiaries measured at cost less impairment plus the amount of investments into
subsidiaries measured under the equity method of accounting. As disclosed in Note 32 to these
consolidated financial statements, the Company has been in compliance with such an equity
restriction as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011

Si@dfcﬂ%ﬁm purposes:
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Note 30. Lawsuits

Parent company

As at 31 December 2012 AS Pro Kapital Grupp had two pending court cases. Both court cases have
been settled after the end of the reporting period.

On 27 May 2010 Aprisco B.V. filed a case to Rotterdam court against AS Pro Kapital Grupp related to
the guarantee letter with what AS Pro Kapital Grupp assures the rental liabilities of the Serval Sur.l
(former Domina Hotel Group Spa, a former group company) arising from the rental agreement of the
Rotterdam hotel, concluded on 4 August 2006 between Serval S.r.| and Hotel Blijdorp B.V.

In 2007 Aprisco B.V. acquired the hotel that was managed by subsidiary of Serval S.r.| and the rental
agreement with Serval S.r.l was transferred to Aprisco B.V. Serval S.r.l has not fulfilled the rental
obligations to Aprisco B.V, therefore Aprisco B.V claims the payments according to the guarantee
letter from AS Pro Kapital Grupp.

Aprisco B.V. has filed alternative claims to the court. Firstly, Aprisco B.V. claims the payment of
caused loss in the amount of 2 300 thousand euros or in the amount stated by the court. As an
alternative claim, Aprisco B.V. claims overdue rental payments in the amount of 904 thousand euros
with accumulated interest for default or in the amount of 504 thousand euros with accumulated
interest for default. On 31 August 2011 Aprisco B.V. changed its claim and claims the payment of
caused loss in the amount of 2 300 thousand euros with accumulated interest for default, or in the
amount stated by the court. As an alternative claim, Aprisco B.V claims overdue rental payments in
the amount of 1 776 thousand euros and accumulated interest for default or in the amount of 1 409
thousand euros and accumulated interest for default.

On 4 July 2012 Rotterdam City Court made a decision and awarded Aprisco B.V claim in the amount
of 1 409 thousand euros to be paid, the sum to be increased by default interest. AS Pro Kapital Grupp
appealed the decision on 11 September 2012.

Nevertheless, to keep in line with the Company’s conservative policies, the provision has been formed
for the maximum amount of the claim 1 409 thousand euros as of 30 June 2012 so the potential
negative outcome of the dispute shall not have a significant impact on AS Pro Kapital Grupp income
statement.

The dispute was settled on 13 March 2013 by signing the settlement agreement between AS Pro
Kapital Grupp and Aprisco B.V.

The condition precedents of the settlement agreement was signing the settiement agreement by both
parties and timely and full payment of the lump sum of 1 000 thousand euros by AS Pro Kapital
Grupp. The settlement agreement was signed and the settlement amount of 1 000 thousand euros
was paid by AS Pro Kapital Grupp. The amount is final; parties shall have no additional claims against
each other (including legal fees). With the settlement agreement the parties agreed to terminate all
litigation connected to the dispute.

The settlement shall have a positive impact on the income statement in the amount of 409 thousand
euros in Q1 as a provision in the amount of 1 409 thousand euros was formed in connection with the
dispute as of 30 June.2012. The only and final payment to Aprisco amounted to 1 000 thousand
euros.

On 6 August 2012 Aprisco B.V has filed the application to the Harju County Court for the recognition
and enforcement of the Rotterdam City Court decision of 4 July 2012. AS Pro Kapital Grupp rejects
the application of Aprisco B.V. as the Rotterdam City Court decision of 4 July 2012 has been
appealed and the decision is not in force and final, thus cannot be deemed enforceable in the
Republic of Estonia in the opinion of AS Pro Kapital Grupp. On 17 January 2013 Harju County court
decided to suspend the proceeding until the Rotterdam City Court decision is final. Aprisco B.V. has
appealed the Harju County court decision of suspending the proceedings.

Signed for identification purposes:
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Aprisco B.V also applied for the court mortgage to be set on AS Pro Kapital Grupp real estate assets
located at Narva road 13a to secure their claim arising from the Rotterdam City Court decision of 4
July 2012. On 27 August 2012 Harju County Court made the ruling in regards to the application to
secure the claim of Aprisco B.V. The court set the court mortgage in total of 808 thousands euros on
Narva road 13a real estate properties belonging to AS Pro Kapital Grupp.

The referred dispute was settled with the settlement agreement signed on 13 March 2013 which has
been referred above. With the settlement agreement the parties agreed to terminate all litigation
connected to the dispute.

Pro Kapital Estonia sub-group

As at 31 December 2012 the parent company of Pro Kapital Estonia sub-group and its subsidiaries
did not have any court cases. AS Taismaja is involved in one law suit as a third party.

Pro Kapital Latvia sub-group

As at 31 December 2012 the Pro Kapital Latvia sub-group had one pending court case and one court
case in which the sub-group’s subsidiary is involved as third party. After the end of the reporting
period one court case reached a final decision, also one additional court case was initiated.

During August — October 2007 the Tax Board audited the VAT accounting of Pro Kapital Latvia PJSC
for the period from January 2005 to December 2006. As a result the Tax Board found that the
company's loss should be 60 thousand Latvian lats smaller (approx. 86 thousand euros). The
Company disputed the decision. The Administrative District Court left the claim unsatisfied. The
company appealed, but on 28 September 2012 the Administrative Regional Court decided to reject
the appeal. The Company submitted the cassation to the Supreme Court of Republic of Latvia. On 11
March 2013 the Supreme Court decided not to initiate the cassation proceeding and the decision of
the Administrative Regional Court came into force, leaving the Tax Board decision in force.

Italian citizen Mr Antonio Sugaroni Ziemelu has started litigation against maintenance company (not
belonging to Group companies) claiming personal damages in amount of 5 thousand Latvian lats on
the basis that he was walking through the street near the building at Pulkveza Brieza 11, Riga and
was injured by the snow and ice falling from the roof of the building. Group company LLC Hotel
Management Services is involved in the proceeding as a third party (not defendant).

On 30 July 2012 the Property department of Riga’s City Council issued a decision according to which
buildings belonging to SIA “Nekustamo TpaSumu sabiedriba “Zvaigznes centrs™ at 193 Brivibas
Street, in Riga are classified as degrading the environment and endangering the security of
people. On the basis of this decision the company would have to pay an increased real estate tax.
The company appealed against the mentioned decision to the chairman of the Riga City Council;
however the chairman decided to reject the claim. The company has on 14 February 2013 appealed
against the decision to the Administrative District Court asking for revocation of the decision.
Proceeding is pending.

Pro Kapital Vilnius sub-group
As at 31.December 2012 the entities of Pro Kapital Vilnius sub-group have two pending court cases.

UAB “Natalex” has filed a claim in the amount of 166 thousand Lithuanian litas (approx. 48 thousand
euros), plus interest 6% for return of the prepayment under an apartment sale contract. Group
company PK Invest UAB found that UAB “Natalex” had breached the contract and the prepayment
has been set-off with the penalty against UAB “Natalex”. In April 2012 the court rejected UAB
“Natalex” claim. UAB “Natalex” has appealed court decision.

In February 2012, UAB "Gatviy statyba" submitted the claim to the Vilnius district court requesting for
197 thousand Lithuanian litas (approx. 57 thousand euros), plus 8.06 % interest, for the performed
works in Saltiniu Namai. Group company PK Invest UAB did not agree with the claim because the
works were performed unduly and the deficiencies were recorded by the parties in writing. The case
was heard at Vilnius district court. The claim of the contractor and the counter-claim of PK Invest UAB
had been upheld partially. PK Invest UAB has filed an appeal on the basis that the court refused to
lower the price of the works that were performed partially and with defi p

are ongoing.
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In 2012 PK Invest UAB has won the appeal court case against “Apskaitos ir Mokesciu sistemos” and
will keep the deposit of 60 thousand Lithuanian litas (17 thousand euros) and litigation cost of 7
thousand Lithuanian litas (2 thousand euros) will be covered to PK Invest.

PK Hotel Management Services GmbH

As at 31 December 2012 PK Hotel Management Services GmbH (former Domina Tourismus GmbH)
did not have any legal disputes.

During the reporting period it had five pending labour court cases, four of which were connected to the
termination of the cleaning department of the hotel.

During the reporting period the Company won four labour court cases initiated by the former
employees of the cleaning department and the conclusion of the court was that the termination of the
employment contracts in those cases was according to law.

During the reporting period the Company also settled a labour court case with sales-manager of the
hotel. Settlement was mutually beneficial.

Signed for idengification purposes:
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Note 31. Supplementary Disclosures on the Parent

The financial information of the Parent comprises separate primary statements of the Parent
(statement of financial position, statement of income, statement of cash flows and statement of
changes in equity), the disclosure of which is required by the Estonian Accounting Act. The primary
financial statements of the Parent have been prepared using the same accounting methods and
measurement bases as those used for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
except for subsidiaries which are reported at cost in the separate primary financial statements of the
Parent.

Statement of Financial Position

in thousands of euros 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and bank balances 58 419
Current receivables 5 364 3162
Total Current Assets 5422 3581
Non-Current Assets
Investments in subsidiaries 28 196 28 196
Non-current receivables from the Group entities 61 869 59 340
Property, plant and equipment 1 0
Total Non-Current Assets 90 066 87 536
TOTAL ASSETS 95 488 91 117

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Current debt 3 261 0
Current payables 12 978 3732
Taxes payable 3 0
Short-term provisions 1409 700
Total Current Liabilities 17 651 4 432
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term debt 8 011 11 272
Non-current payables to the Group entities 105 460 104 824
Long-term provisions 0 36
Total Non-Current Liabilities 113 471 116 132
Total Liabilities 131122 120 564
Equity
Share capital in nominal value 10 637 10 637
Retained earnings
Accumulated profit losses -40 084 -31 200
Loss for the financial year -6 187 -8 884
Total equity -35 634 -29 447
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 95 488 91 117

Signed for identification purposes:
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Statement of Income

in thousands of euros 2012 2011

Operating income

Revenue 268 554
Cost of sales 0 0
Gross profit 268 554
Marketing expenses -218 -7
Administration expenses -2 138 -2 227
Other expenses -725 -700
Operating loss -2 813 -2 380
Finance income and cost
Finance income / cost from investments in subsidiaries 0 -55
Interest expense -6 292 -5 203
Impairment loss from financial investments 0 -4 038
Other finance income and cost 2918 2792
Loss before income tax -6 187 -8 884
Loss for the financial year -6 187 -8 884

Signed %ﬂn purposes: l
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Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Annual Report 2012

in thousands of euros 2011 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the financial year -6 187 -4 846
Adjustments:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1 1

Interest income and expense (net) 3374 1142
Change in receivables and prepayments 52 10
Change in investments -49 -648
Changes in liabilities and prepayments 716 -2 564
Cash flow used in operating activities -2 093 -4 881
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment -1 0
Additions to intangible assets -8 0
Increase of share capital or acquisition of subsidiaries 0 -3
Separation of subsidiaries (demerger) 0 -3198
Loans granted 0 -35 302
Repayments of loans granted 7187 6 808
Interest received 489 511
Cash flows used in investing activities 7 667 -31 184
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans raised 630 41 494
Repayments of loans raised -5 520 -3 365
Interest paid -1 045 -1 870
Cash flows from financing activities -5 935 36 259
Net change in cash --361 194
Cash at the beginning of the year 419 225
Cash at the end of the year 58 419

Signed-foridentifigati purposes:'
ﬂ‘/ :
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Signatures of the Management Board and Supervisory
Council to the Consolidated Annual Report 2012

The Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp has prepared the management report, the
consolidated financial statements and the loss allocation proposal for 2042.

Paolo Michelozzi Member of the Management Board » 29 Aprit 2013

.,

Allan Remmelkoor  Member of the Management Board"d';;—"; 29 April 2013

s,

The Supervisory Council has reviewed the Consolidated Annual Report’which consists of the
management report and the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Management Board,
and which also includes the auditor's report and the loss allocation proposal, and approved it for
presentation at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Emanuele Bozzone Chairman of the Supervisory Council 29 April 2013

Pertti Huuskonen Member of the Supervisory Council “ 29 April 2013
SAeme

Petri Olkinuora Member of the Supervisory Councus % il 2013

Giuseppe Prevosli Member of the Supervisory Council 29 April 2013

Renato Lorenzo Bullani Member of the Supevisory Counci 29 April 2013
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Reg.no. 10687819
INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the shareholders of AS Pro Kapital Grupp:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (pages 35 to 84) of AS Pro Kapital
Grupp (hereafter also “the Group”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Management Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Board of the parent company of the Group is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Estonian Accounting Act and International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted in the European Union, and for such internal control as the
Management Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Certified Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Estonia). Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the certified auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the certified auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Management Board,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of AS Pro Kapital Grupp as at 31 December 2012, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Estonian Accounting Act and International Financial
Report ng Standards as adopted in the European Union.

Veiko Hintsov

Certified Auditor, No. 328
AS Deloitte Audit Eesti
Licence No. 27

Deloitte refers to one or more Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company
limited by guarantee, and its network of member firms, each of which is a legally separate
and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.com/about for a detailed description of the
legal structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Proposal for Loss Allocation

The Management Board of AS Pro Kapital Grupp proposes the net loss for the year ended at
31 December 2012 in the amount of 5 866 thousand euros to be cover by retained earnings.




